MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated}

Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4
Investment property 5
Investment property under constriction 6
Other Intangible assets 7
Financial assets
- Investments 8
- Other financial assets 9
Deferred tax assets (net) 10
Non-current Tax assets (net) 11
Other non-current assets 12
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories 13
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 14
- Cash and cash equivalents 15A
- Other bank balances 15B
- Other financial assets 16
Other current assets 17

Total current assets
Total assets before regulatory deferral account

Regulatory deferral account - assets

Total assets

As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)
1,248 1,296
206,357 205,144
11,038 7,867
1 1
34 29
3,094 2,526
388 473
838 928
552 580
223,550 218,844
42 72
1,042 572
3,309 4,062
2,694 206
3,786 2,535
492 586
11,365 8,033
234,915 226,877
288 354
235,203 227,231




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Al amounts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Corpus

Unit Capital

Other equity

Equity attributable to unit holders of the Mindspace REIT

Non-controlling interest
Total equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings

- Lease liabilities

- Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings
- Lease liabilities
- Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Current Tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities before regulatory deferral account

Total equity and liabilities before regulatory deferral account

Regulatory deferral account - liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Material accounting policies

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated

Interim Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached:
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 117366 W/W-100018

e

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership number: 49660
Place: Mumbai

Date : 30 October 2023

9

Note

18

20

47

21

22
23
24
25

26

27

28
29
30
31

4-53

As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)

0 0

162,839 162,839
(18,023) (15,012)
144,816 147,827

7,746 7,955

152,562 155,782
47,582 45,842

121 114

4,068 4,153

72 67

3,315 2,494

474 482

55,632 53,152

16,355 8,693

13 13

87 133

749 576

8,517 7,696

7 34

1,165 1,127

116 25

27,009 18,297

82,641 71,449
235,203 227,231
235,203 227,231

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

cting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

DIN: 00029010
Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 October 2023

j j é:u\\* PSR nns
. ¢ M

y Preeti N. Chheda

Chief Financial Officer

Ramesh Nair

Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 October 2023 Date : 30 October 2023



(89¢'1) - (89¢'1) - . = -

5L'8 08T 'y S6L'F 060'T £PE'T 1SH'T
(vy} = (+9) (68) - (62) (0g)

S0z vTl 8 () 1T A (81)

119'8 9S1'F SSE'P 198°F L0t 19£' 66+'T

pes'e 60L°1 SEN 806'1 798 £€6 SL6

lep's 6+<'1 THE'L 61Z7'T 0£8 990°1 £81°1

96S'ST PIF'L 818 8868 £9L'E 09€'% LI9'Y

SPF'L 00y SPI'E IEr'e 660°€ LSY'1 9LL'D

<00'T 8L6 LEO'1 961'1 Lss LES 659

081 L8 €6 L9 09 8T 6€

7489 T0E 08¢ £6€ 051 Ll 444

cus 1Lz +6T LOE 9¢€1 sl ss1

4 11 1 11 L 8 €

LY It 9 08 14 9¢ ¥l

L 9 1 £ £ [ 4

T z & I I 1 0

F6s 9tz 8F€ e £€1 951 981

S8z or1 33 rSI L 8L 9L

L1 LTt 0L £0F 61 $TT 6L1

<l 0l < I ¥ 0 I

181'T 65L'1 T F0S 65L°1 +9T (114

I+0°€T PILTL LTETL (T4 7989 L10'9 €019

€9 4 It S01 Ll €8 44

L§1 96 19 rzl 9¢ 9¢ 88

1T8'TT 968°11 STTII 16171 68L'9 868°C €679

(panpny) (paupneury) «paupneuy) (paypneun) «(panpneun) (paupnespy) «(poupneun)
ETOTYMEN 1€ 20z squiandag g £70T Y2uEp £207 Pquinidag og TT0T 2quaidag g £70T 2unf 0g £207 quandas g
Papua teak ayy 104 papua tmak jey Ayi S0 € papus Ak jimy Ayp2og  papud Jedd jley ay) dog papua sapenb au 104 papua sapenb ay 104 papua sapaenb ayy Jo g

(€1 Pue ¥ | 210U 19J21) sw| [euonddaxy

xg) pue sway [euondadxa alojaq pyord

11aea Jo 12adsal ut (3ou) (ssuadxa)owoout Aojen3ay : ppy

(10u) (asuadxa) pwoeaur Loendsy : ppy

XE) puE 5wyl [Euodinxd sl paendal 2)ed 210§aq Jjosg

or ssupdxs uonesiiowe pue uoneradag
6¢ 1$00 d3ueuL]
xi) pue swayl [ruonddaxa suadxa f aweduy L10)enaa

‘uopesiiowE pue uoneaadop ‘51503 dduEuy d10jaq sBuuiey

sasuadxzg (w0,

8€ sasuadxd Y10
822§ [euoissajod % [edo]

Le soueumuiew pue saeday
$33) WdwWdTeury

§30) Upny

asuadxa aduensu|
$20) uonenje

$aa] 2DISTU],

9¢ $231A29% DT eUE A)[1oE] JO 1500
(13 asuadxa spjauaq sakojdwyg
paseyund Jamod jo 150

P|Os S|RLIRW JO 1500
SAIIAIIS JARNUOD HIOM JO 150

sasudadxyg

suled pue Jwodul (€10 ],

¥E AWodU[ IO
€€ ETLAT BECE T
€ suonead() woly snuaaay

SUIED pue Jwoauj

a0y

(PAPEIS ISTAIIYI0 SSIUN UOI[IL *SH U] SIUNOWE [[V)
RO PUE JJOL] JO JUMNUIELS PaRpIOsuo’y

SPUMUMELS [FIIURUL] WLAJU] PHEPIOSUN]) PIsUIpUO)
E00/0T-6 1/ LITU/NINY

LAY SMUVd SSANISOE JOVASANTIN



6FT 061 6¢ L81 88 r6 £6 sjsadajul Jugjjodjucy uou 0} AqeIngLe
aeakporaad ay doj (ssof)mwodul dasudydsdwod (ejo |,
0£8°C L96°1 €98 889'C 98L SLT'L Il LAY 22edspurly Jo s19p[oy Jiun 0} A qejngriye
aeak [ powtad ayy Joj (ssof)pwodur darsuaydaduwod [ejo ],
6LO'E LS1°T 76 SLR'T bLS 69E°T S0S'1 Juad fporaad ayy J0j (ssof)pwodur dasudaydadwod [ejo ],
= S)S2I) Ul
) = g = ) ) Burf[onuoed uou 0) AqeIngLE Awedul d2asudPIduod YO
19) ° © : : - i L1y 2edspuiy Jo S12p[oy Jun 0} AqEINGLIIE dwodu drsudaydadwod 12y

- B “ - - - - A0qe 03 BunERL XE) Awodu] (1)
5 . 2 - - & = ss0] 10 jjoad 0) paLJISSE[AI aq [ Jey) SwN (1) g

- - - - = N = aaoqe 0] Suneps Xey awoduy (1)

(9) L [C)] E - = - (1osse) /AN[IQRI] JJIUIQ POULDP JO SIUDLMNSEIWI UO (5507 /uten) -
ss0] 10 yjoad o) parjIsse[dad aq 10U [[Ia Juy) sw] (1) Y
Awodut dasudRIdwod Y10
s)san Ul
ore 061 6% L8t 88 6 £6 duigjoajuod-uou o) dpqengrie Jeasporsad ay Joj (sso)pyosd
98 L96°1 698 889'C 98L LTI iK'l s
edspuigy Jo s19pjoy Hun 0) dqEIngLE J8dLpoudd dy 40) (ss0T)AL0L
SRO°E LST'T 876 SLR'T LR 69E°1 S0S'1 aeaksporsad dyy 10j (ssop)nyosd
66T'F £II'T 9LI'T 0Z6'1 RIT'1 L6 [T asuadxa xe]
+Ot'T LOT'1 L&'l <06 19L £Lr ey £ afieys xe) panaja
<68l 916 6L6 SI0'L LSt 108 ris It XE] JUALIn)
PREL 08T'F FOT'E S6L'Y 60'T £PE'T ISH'Z XE] 210J2q 01
(panpny) (panpneun) Spanpneun) (pappneun) wlpanpreun) (paupneun) +(paypneun)
ETOTYMEW 1£ TT0T equiadag gf £T0T YyeN €707 22quindag og TT0T s2quidag pg £T0T unf og £20T quadag og
papua aeak ay 104 papua meak ey ayy 10 | papus dead Jiey Ay 104 papud JedA Jjey gl Jog papua sauenb ay 104 papua sapenb s sog papud spenb ayy Jo4

0N

(PaIELS ISLMIIYI0 SEAUN UOP|[ILL S} U] SJUnoWeE [y}
SO PUE JJO04] JO JUIWINEG PIRPIOSUO])

SUMUN S [FPURUL] WU PAERIOSUO]) PIsUIpue])
£00/0T-6 1/ LITH/NEINY

LIFY SHUV SSANISNE DVASANIN



£20Z 29010 0 : A
lequunjy 19e[]

L0 jp1upuLg fo1g

BPAYYD "N Mg

(171 saBeuey Juawgsoauy dio) eloyey M se umowy JaULI0]) pOIWIT eAlld S1aSEUR]Y JudunsdAu] dio

€202 39010 0 * A1ed

IBQUINJY 298|

Q) 241X 1

1

(L1 syaeg ssoursng soedsputjy o1 Joifew

£T0T 240120 0 - e
equINgA] (298]

J0 S1012241(] JO pIROE ) JO JlEya

br

£TOT 2qO1Q ()€ * Amg
tequingy 098]

09961 oquinu digsiaquiniy
oupe

eys ysaqiN

810001-M/MY9ELT | HOQUINT BonensiSal s, Wit
SIBIUNOIIY PaIdLIEY))

7171 SIS P Sup{sef] apto[a( 10)

‘payaEne 21ep udAd Jo uodas mo Jad sy

£T0T ‘1€ YMe paiep J0pio JYIIN U0 paseq £T0T YMER papud teak pue sapenb sy dop wounsnfpe dn o] ..

0€ MON 12§94
g5t SIUDWNEIS |eIueuL]
WL PAIEPIOSUOD) PASUIPUO)) 21 01 $230u Fuifueduiodde o 20§

¢ sanijod Sununodde [ELRjeN

8L'F e L'l £5'r £l 14 8E°T pangiq-

8L¥ (A7) L'l £5°F £l 9 4 8€°T 2ISRE
saduweg [RII2Jo( AI0JR[NTIY Ul JUIWIDACW JIU IV

FEF e 'l Yoy 671 81T 9T pan|iq-

Ve e 'l o'y 671 81z bl ard Jiseg-
sa0uE[eg [B143)0(] L10je[nEay Ul JUIWIAOW JIU J10jdg
tt yun aad Sulusey

(paupny) (paupneu) +(paupneun) (paypneun) (paupneun) «(panpneun)
ETOT YR 1E 7707 12quiadag of £207 Pquindag pg TT0T 1pquiadag pg £T0T unf pg £T0T Joquindag gg
PapLa 134 Ay 104 Papua IRAL IRy Ay A0 [€ PAPUR IEAK JIRY Y1 I0  PIPU JEAA JjEy W) Jog papua sapenb g Jo4 papua tapenb auy s papua sapenh ayy Joq
RILTN]

(PAELS ISLAMIII0 SSAUN UOIIL S} Ul SUnowe [y
SS07] PUE JJ0L] JO JUIUIEIS PANPIOSUO])

SUHUA NS [EDERUL] WQU] PHEPIOsU0]) pasuapu)y
E00/0T-6 1/ LITH/NENY

LIAY SHUV SSANISNE DVASANIN



0E6°ET £16°S LOO'8 £PS'L 0187 61T'F rIb'e
[CIIAY [ (588) (ye8) 1) (8z¢) (908)
959'S1 FLL'O 688 LLE'S 97T'E LYY 0£6°€
¥ It [4¥4] LTl €9 1 (53]
(1r1) (zz1) (61) 99 (61) 61 Ly
19¢ (324 (88) (€) Tit 1L (FLE)
(g60°1) (zo6) (161) (£91) (st9) (zsT) <8
80L (08t) 881°1 (SLy) (87¢) 1 (19¢)
(9%) (0g) (C19] 0¢€ 8¢ 11 61
£L8'S1 YL 1£7'8 66L°8 S88°E 0ST'¥ 6rsS'y
89€°1 E 89€°1 = = - 2
wn (1 (91) (#8) (1 (zL) (zv)
I 1 = 0 = 0 0
(2¢) @n (1) (81) (r1) (n (L)
L81 o1l LL 1 o1l I 01
[y 0€ 0T S 61 0 S
5 = a LS - = LS
(L¥) (61) (87) (c6) (T (n (§29]
£ 6151 788°1 61T 0£8 990°1 €51'1
$ec'e 60L°1 Se'l 806°1 798 £E6 SL6
$8C°L 08T FOI'E S6L'Y 160°C e ISK'T
(panpny) (paupneun) S(panpneury) S(panpneuny) Jpanpneupy) (panpneun)) «(panpneun)
STOTYMEW 1 TTOT Pquiandag Og £T0T YueW £707 J2quidag og 7707 saquiadag of £TOT Aunf OF £707 42qundag g
Papua Jead A J0q papua Ak jiey M) 104 (€ papua aead ey A 20g  papua Jeak jey s aog papua apenb s 104 papua sapenb ay 104 papua sapaenb ayy a0y

(v) sanianoe Suneaado woay (ur pasn)/pPajetauds ysea 1aN
PaA0aI punjal Jo 1ou pied saxe) 12

suonesado wody (ur pasn)/paresauai yse)

SO[QRARC DPR) UL ISEAIDUL / (ISBAIII()

(saniqey

/ $19851) 1UN0538 [RLJOP Aloje[nFal ul aseaidut / (3sed129()
suorsiaoad pue

SONI[Iqel] JOO ‘SOM[IGRI] [RISURULY JILI0 Ul (25RIIDIP) / ASEAIIU]
$13S5E JOUI0 PUB SIDSSE [EIDUBUL JIYIO UL ISBIUIDD / (aseanaup)
SO[RAIDIDI APRA UL DSEIIIDIP / (dsEAIIU])

SOLIOJUDAUL UT D5BDI0DP / (d582I2U[)

(endes Supjiosm Ul JUIWIAOLY

saSury [endea Supjom a10jaq Moy ysed Suyerado
(g€ pue y1¢ al0u 1aj21) sway] [euondaoxyg
3orq UANLIAM PaNbal 19Fu0] ou SANI[IQRIT
(19u) s50] UONEMANY dFURYIXD URIDI04
S)un puny [ennw jo uondwopal uo uien
POYSHOW( 30 UDILIM SIOSSY

(10u) s1gap [NPGNOP 10} UOISIACL]

ANUIAIL PIJ[IQULY 10} UDISIACL]

WodUI 1SU]

$1S00 20URUL]

asuadxa uonesiowe pur uoneada(

110§ spudwsnipy

X1 210J2q 0L

sapianae Sunesado woay smoy yse) Y

(PagE)s ISPMINYI0 SSI[UN UOI[IUL "53] UL SIUROWE |[Y)
MO YSED JO JUIWIIEIS PAEPIOSUO)

SIUDUAIE]S [EIIUEUL] WLIDJU] PAEPIOSUO) Pasuapuoe)
£00/0T-61/LITH/NINY

L13Y SMUVd SSANISNE JIVASANIN



198°1 (1£9) 16€°C (097°7) £01 (881°7) (zL)
(€9s'y) (sPre) (s11°n (90¢€) (£ps‘D) 70€ (809)
(iL8°¢) (£+0°T) (8T8°1) (S11°0) (Ts) (£66) @rn
(1) - (1) () - (1) -
(6oo'z1) (106°s) (801'9) (560°9) (686'7) (TLo'e) (€z0°¢)
(€1) - (€1) - - - -
(£36) - (£86) . - - =
(1%) (15) (0g) (8%) (97) (zt) 97)
£86 . £86 = - - -
00F°¢1 0066 005°S 8L6'6 000°¢ 000°¢ 8L6'Y
(6Lg'l) (6£7°8) (or1°¢) (6€8'01) (spH'e) (989°8) (€51°T

16€°6 688°C 7089 F18°8 6EL 9L0°8 8€L
(908°L) (600%€) (86F°F) (L6t°6) (Fo1°1) (609'9) (888°'7)
9% 54 [ €< 01 £l [
03 (€z1) €L (606°€) (81) (LE1) 8€7
LES'TT L96°6 0LS'TI L6L'L F95°¢ 1s's 986°L
(10s°z2) (£96°6) (9g€°z1) (6LL°L) (pss's) (00%°s) (6L6°1)
(9) (9) - (€) - () -
1 8T g € LT : €
(e7) (zn (F1) (sn) (8) (8) (L)
(FE9L) (£26'0) (11L') (Tr9c) (681°1) (EL¥'T) (691°¢)

(panpny’) (paupmeun)) Jpanpneun) Wpaupneun) s(paypneuny) (panpneun)) s{panpneun)
£TOT YT 1€ TT0T +quindag g £TOT YEp £207 aquidag g 20T 1qundag g £TOT aunf pg £20T 1qundag of
papua Jeak Ay 04 papua qeak Jley s 104 |§ papus Jeak jiey Ayl dod  papu Jeak Jimy A 04 papua sapenb sy a0y papua tapenb auyp Jo4 papud sapenb oy 104

1

(D+d+¥) siuaeamnba yses pue ysed ul (IsBAIIIP)/ASEIIIUL JAN

(D) sanpiapoe Sudurul (Ul Pasn); pajesauasd ysed JaN
pied s1500 souruLy

susoda(q pung ssuadxg L19a020y

(xe1 Surpnjaur) 1apjoy 1suapu]

Ful[[oNUO)-UON O] PUIPIAIP PUR SIDOPJOYIIUN O] UONNGLISIC
SONI|IGRI] 25RI| SpIRAO) JUdWAR ]

1aded [eroswwo)) jo uondwapay

sasuadxa aNSSI SUMUIIP J|GIIDALOI-UON

Jode |RI2IOWLWOT) JO NS5 WO SPAdd0L

SPUOQ PUB $2IMIUIQIP I[QIHIAUGI-UOU JO INSSI WOLY SPIDI0IJ
STUIMOLI0Q [BUIRXD JO Judwieday

SBUIMOLIOG [BUIDIXD WO SPId0L]

SAALPIE SUDUBUL W) SMOL YsED D

{ g ) sannanae Sunsaaul wodj payeaauad ;/ (u1 pasn) ysed jaN
POAIDII 18DINU]

$20UB|Eq JUBG JOUI0/SUSOdOP PIXI) U JUILUDAOJA

puny [rranuw jo uondiwdpal wolj spadvoig

PUny [BAINW Ul JUDWESIAU]

PUOE JUDLLITLIIADD) UI JUDLISIAU[
spuawdinba

pue uepd Asodosd p*Aodord Judunssaul Jo J[ES WO SPIAO0I]
ssasfoad u-yom [ende)

pue juswdinby pue siueld ‘Auadold uo paunout axmipusdxy
“(q¢ 210N) uonisinbae jasse pue siopald [enndes jo

1ou ‘saoueape [endes Suipnpout uononnsuod sapun Auadosd
uaunsaaut pue Luadoad Jusunsoaul uo pasmndut amipuddxy

SIIAIDE SUNSIAUT WOf SMO[) YsED)

(PANEIS ISLAUIINYIO SSIUN LO|[IU *$Y Ul SIUNOWE [[)
MO[4 YSED JO JUIWIIEIS PIIEPIOSUODY
14 wERu] D PISUIPUO])

EOOT-6 1/ LITU/NT-NY
LAY SMUVA SSANISNE HDOVISANIN




£20T 1290130 0 : e
RNy (298]

420Hf0 [piaunuL fo14)
EpaYyD "N Baa1d

£T0T 1990120 O¢ - Meq
RGN 098]

A2 anundaxy fargd
JIEN] YSIUWE

£Z07 12qo130 (f : MNeq
IRQUNY 1208|d

0106T000 :NIT

/

(L1 $3teg ssowsng aoedspurpy oy 1aSeuepy oy se Sunoe) 1wJeurly ay) s Sunae)

(4171 s4aSeuepy Juaunsaaug dio) elayey ¥ se usowy A1auL1o ) pajwir| el s1adeue]y juswysaau] dio) eloyey y

3O SI0121 JO PAROF U1 JO J[RYDQ UO PuE 10§ 'Y JO J[EYIQ UO pue 10}

€5t

&

£TOT Q010 0f - ANed
IRquInpy (20R|d

0996¢ Joquinu diysiaquiajy
.?umc_.mﬁﬁ__

:u:mmu__z

R10001-M/MYYEL T ] HIquInU uonensITol s, Wity
SIURIUNOIDY PAIILIRLD)

dTT S119S % SURiSeH apLop( 10}

payaene Jep usad Jo podar o tad sy

0§ JI0N 1) 4

SIUDWNES [RIGUBUL]
WU PARPIOSUOD) pasuapuo)) Ay o sajou Furduedwosar a 228
*SUDTIRSURI) YSED UOU 10 (B)9 10U JAJY T :DION

*,SMO[ YSED) JO wawaes, - £ (S ANI) prepuei§ Sununosay auyi ul ino 195 se poyiajy 19911pu], st 1apun patedard ussg sey JUIWNRIS MO YSBD 0GR YL “| DION

aeadsporsad ayy jo 8

ISk £P8'T £8S 834 559 £85
(8€9°C 61T (9zL'T (8£9°0) (798°7) (97L°7)
cT 088 08 cT 01¢ 08
< € 5 € I cs
Lso'e 9LI'E IL1'g LSO'E €61°¢ IL1'e
T € £ # £ £
1% £r8'T £85 1854 §S9 €85
86 554 £P8'T 8re £PR'T £59
(paupny) (paupneup)) «(paupneur)) «(paupneun) w(panpneun)) (panpmeupy) w(panpneun)
ETOT YMEW 1€ TTOT pquiadag g £TOT YMelW £T07 spquiadag o 7207 saquadag og £T0T 3unf Of £207 12qundag 0g

Papua 1eak 2y} 10,

papua teadk gley auyy 104

1€ Papua anak jloy s dog  papua aeak jjmy sy sog

papua sapenb au 104

papua apenb ay) 104

papud sapaenb sy 04

£ ajou 13§aa - sandjod SununodIde (BB

Jeak ; porsad ayy jo pud ayy je spuajearnba yses pue yse)
YRIPIDAO YuRg : S

U

221y ue $89] Jo Aumew [eurfuo s siunodsse psodap ui-
SIUNOIIE MOIISD Ul -

SIUNOADE JUDLIND U -

SHUBQ YA DOUR|RE

puey uo yse)

(97 %% VS "ou 3jou 13j24) sasudwod syuajeainba yses pue yse)

Jeak ; pouad 2y Jo pud 2y Je spuajeanba ysed pue yse)

32q 2y) JE Sju9)

ba yse> pue yse)

(PAIEIS ISLUIIN IO SSIUD UOI[I "SY] Ul SJUNOWE [|Y)
O[] YSED) JO JUIWAERS PAIEPIOSUD])
SIUIUIE)S [EIDUENL] WIU] PIIEPIOSUO]) PISUIPUD])

£00/0T-61/ LITUNINY
LI3Y SHUVd SSANISNE DVISANIN



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A.

Corpus

Amount

Balance as on 1 April 2022
Changes during the year

Balance as on 31 March 2023
Balance as on | April 2023
Changes during the period

Closing balance as on 30 September 2023

- Corpus

Balance as on 1 April 2022
_Changes during the period

Balauce as on 30 September 2022

8. Unit Capital

Amounnt

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Changes during the year

162,939

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Balance as at 1 April 2023

162 819
162,839

Changes during the peried
‘Balance as at 30 September 2023

162,830

_Unin Capital

Amount

‘Ralance as at 1 April 2022
Changes during the period

fzalance as at 30 September 2022

', Other equity

162,839

162,839

Retained Earnings

Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Add. Profit for the year attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT

Balance as at 30-Sept_e__mher 2022

Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022* (2,734
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022% (2,811
“Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 Septeinber 2022* (2.81'H
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2022 . (2,346)
Less: Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve™ (#25)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (15.,546)
Balance as at 1 April 2023 (15.546)
Add: Profit for the period attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 2,688
Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) aitributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT -
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023* (2,852}
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter wnded 30 June 2023% (2.846)
__Less: Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve™* . 134
Balance as at 30 September 2023 (18,423}
Other equity
Retained Earnings Amount
“Balance as at 1 April 2022 (6,743)
Add: Profit for the period attributabie to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 1,967
Add: Other comprehensive income attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT -
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022%* (2,734)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022% (2,811
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve®* (249)
(10,570)



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity

(AIl amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 109
Transfer to retained earnings (5)
Transfer from retained earnings 430
“Balance as at 31 March 2023 534
Balance as at 1 April 2023 534
Transfer to retained earnings (165)
Trausfer from retained eainings Bl
Bajance as at 30 September 2023 400
Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 Y
ransfer from retained earnings 240
33k

Balance as at 30 September 2022

* The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the REIT

Regulations.
*#*% Refer Note 20

Material accounting policies - vefer note 3

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 4-53

A por our report of even du attached:
o Detoitie Haskins & Selis LLP
(Chartercd Accountants

Firm's recistration number: 117366W/W-100018

Il

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership number: 49660
Place: Mumbai

Date : 30 October 2023

Z

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja
Corp Investment Managers LLP)

(acfing as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

[ St

mesh Nair Preeti N. Chheda
Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00029010 -
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 October 2023 Date : 30 October 2023 Date : 30 October 2023



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

(Al amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016

A)' S t of Net Assets At Fair Value
As at 30 September 2023 (Unaudited) As at 31 March 2023 (Audited)

S.No Particulars Book Value* Fair value Book Value* ~ Fair value

A Assels 235,203 310,710 227,231 301,174
B Liabilities** 82,641 79,842 © 71,449 68,962
C Net Assets (A-B) 152,562 230,868 155,782 232,212
D Less: Non controlling interests 7,746 11,666 7,955 11,649
E Net Assets attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT (C-D) 144,816 219,202 147,827 220,563
F No. of units 593,018,182 593,018,182 593,018,182 593,018,182
G Net Assets Value per unit (E/F) 244 370 249 in2

* as reflected in the Balance Sheet

**Refer Note-5 below

Measurement of fair values:

The fair values of Investment property, Property, plant and equif 1 property under construction and Capital work-in-progress are solely based on an independent valuation performed by an
external property valuer ("independent valuer"), having appropriately recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued.

Other assets include cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other working capital balances which are not factored in the discounted cashflow method used in determining the fair value of investment

property, investment property under development, property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and intangibles.

Valuation technique

The fair value measurement for all of the Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress has been categorized as a Level 3 fair value
based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. The valuer has followed a Discounted Cash Flow method, except for valuation of land for future development where the valuer has adopted Market Approach
or Govermment Benchmark Price / Guideline Value as may be applicable. The Discounted Cash Flow valuation model considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the respective properties,
taking into account the expected rental growth rate, vacancy period, occupancy rate. and lease incentive costs. The expected net cash flows are discounted using the risk adjusted discount rates. Among other
factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quality of a building and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality, lease terms and investor retumn expectations from such properties.

Notes
| Project wise break up of fair value of assets as at 30 September 2023 is as follows

Particulars Fair value of Investment Other assets at book value Total assets
property, Property, plant and
equipment, Investment
property under construction
and Capital work-in-progress
Intime 19,102 1,763 20,865
KRIT 35,219 653 35872
Sundew 63,407 619 64,026
MBPPL
MBPPL - Mindspace Airoli East 44,404
MBPPL - Mindspace Pocharam 1,923
3,306 78,086
MBPPL - Commerzone Yerwada 19,102
MBPPL - The Square, Nagar Road 9,351
Gigaplex 44,443 501 45,004
Avacado
Avacado - Mind Malad 10,938
vacado ndspace Mala s 15775
Avacado - The Square, BKC 4,732
KRC Infra
KRC Infra - Gera Commerzone Kharadi 28,936 748 36,735
KRC Infra - Camplus 7.050]
Horizonview 11,048 205 11,253
Mindspace REIT - 45,652 45,652
Less: Eliminations and Other Adj ts* - (42,558) (42,558)
Total 299,657 11,053 310,710
Less: Non-controlling interest (12,950) (362) (13,311)l
297,398
Total attributable to unitholders 187 1061 J

* It includes eliminations primarily pertaining to lending to SPVs by Mindspace REIT and consolidation adjustments




2 Project wise break up of fair value of assets as at 31 March 2023 is as follows

Particulars Fair value of Investment Other assets at book value Total assets®
property, Property, plant and
equipment, Investment
property under construction
and Capital work-in-progress
Intime 18,911 1,898 20,809
KRIT 34,243 625 34,868 |
Sundew 62,189/ 398 62,587
MBPPL
MBPPL - Mindspace Airoli East 45,213
MBPPL - Mindspace Pocharam 2,327
6,272 82,424
MBPPL - Commerzone Yerwada 19,389
MBPPL - The Square, Nagar Road 9,223
[ Gigaplex o 44,365 741 45,606
!fvacado
Avacado - Mindspace Malad 10,582
- 1,292 16,527
Avacado - The Square, BKC 4,653
KRC Infra
T KRC Infra - Gera Commerzone Kharadi 26,162 1,524 34,677
KRC Infra - Camplus 6,991
Horizonview 8,205 301 8,506
Mindspace REIT - 35,421 35421
Less: Eliminations and Qther Adjustments™ - (40,251) (40,251)
Total 292,953 8,221 301,174
I[,L:S'h: Non-controlling interest - T (12,688) (321) (13,009)
il‘“*-" attributable to unitholders_ 280,265 7,900 288,165

# [t includes eliminations primarily pertaining (o lending to SPVs by Mindspace REIT and consolidation adjustments

3 Other assels at book value excludes capital advances, unbilled revenue, finance lease receivable and regulatory assets (which form part of fair valuation of the Investment property, Property, plant and cquipment,
Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress).

4 Power Deemed Distribution License uperations in Gigaplex, MBPPL and KRC Infra have been valued by the valuer separately using Discounted Cash Flow method.
5 Liabilities at book value for calculation of fair value of NAV excludes lease liability, provision for revenue share, capital creditors (other than related to initial direct cost) and retention payables (which form part

of fair valuation of the Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress).

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed C lid
Statements
As per our report of even date attached:

d Interim Fi ial 4-53

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Carp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja
(hartered Accountants Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Firn's registration number: 117366W/W-100018

s

Nilesh Shah

(acting as the Manager to Mind B

,-/\’ £ ol 1 el —

Ramesh Nair Preeti N. Chheda

Partner Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership number: 49660
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date * 30 October 2023

a

Date : 30 October 2023 Date : 30 October 2023 Date : 30 October 2023



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
{All amounts are in Rs, millions unless otherwise stated)

B) Statement of Total Return at Fair Value (Attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT)

Make:
Messuremeni of fair values:

Total Return_- Attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REET
S.MNo Particulars For the half year ended | For the half year ended | For the half year ended | For the year ended
30 September 2023 31 March 2023 30 September 2022 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)* (Unaudited) (audited)
A Tota! comprehensive Income 2,688 863 1,967 2,830
B Add : Changes '.nl .' value not {cum:gmscd.‘n 1,653 8,083 6,764 14.847
L = 1 total gomp_r_t_:ﬂ(fﬂ_q_l ve income (refer Note below) _ )
| C(AYB) [TowlRetwrn : oo B 4,341 8,940 8,731 . 1em

1he fair values of Investment sroperty, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress are solely based on an independent valuation performed by
an external property valeer ("independent valuer"), having appropriately recogised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued,

(]

In the above statement, changes in fair value not recognised for the half year ended 30 September 2023, half year ended March 31, 202

3 and half year ended 30 September 2022 have been computed

based-on the change in fair values for such periods adjusted for change in book value of Investment Property. Investinent property under construction and Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital
work in progress, Capilal advances, Unbilled revenue, Finance lease receivable, regulatory assets, Capital creditors (other than related to nitial direct cost), Retention payables and Lease Liabilities

for the respective periods..

“Hefer Note 50

Sigpificant sccounting policies - refer note 3

Sec e accempanying aoles to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

\s per our reportt of cven dale av2ched

for Deloitie Hasking & Sells L9

Chartered Aceountams
Sirm’s registration number: 17 A6W/W-100018

pt’

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership number: 49650

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 Ociober 2023

A

4-53

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known
as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT}

lﬂ@. Ln T A s~

Ramesh Nair Preeti N. Chieda
Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 3 October 2002

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 October 2023

Place. Mumbai
Date : 30 October 2023
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond d C
Notes to Accounts

lidated Interim Financial Statements

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1 Organisation Structure

The condensed consolidated Interim financial statements (‘Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements’) comprise financial statements of Mindspace Business
Parks Real Estate Investment Trust ('Mindspace Business Parks REIT/ Mindspace REIT/Trust), its SPVs Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited (MBPPL"), Gigaplex
Estate Private Limited (‘Gigaplex'), Sundew Properties Limited (‘Sundew’) Intime Properties Limited ('Intime'), K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited ('KRIT"), KRC
Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited (KRC Infra’), Horizonview Properties Private Limited (‘Horizonview'), Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
('Avacado') (individually referred to as ‘Special Purpose Vehicle” or *SPV” or "Asset SPV" and together referred to as “Mindspace Business Parks Group’/Mindspace

Group').

The SPVs are companies domiciled in India.

Anbee Construetions LLP (‘ACL’) and Cape Trading LLP (*CTL’) collectively known as (the *Sponsors’ or the ‘Co- Sponsors’) have set up the 'Mindspace Business Parks
REIT' as an irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with Securities and
Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') as a Real Estate Investment Trust on 18th November 2019 under Regulation 6 of the Securities and Fxchange Board of India (Real
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 having registration number RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003. The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the
“Trustee”) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

(the ‘Investment Manager’).

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is to carry on the activity of a real estate investment trust, as permissible under the REIT Regulations, to raise
funds through the REIT, to make Investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the Investment Strategy and to carry on the activities as may be required for
operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary matters thereto.

The units of the trust were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 7 August 2020.

The brief activities and shareholdin,

pattern of the SPVs are provided below:

3 Sk . Shareholding Shareholding
Nameofithe SEY Artne (in percentage) as at 30 September 23 (in percentage) as at 31 March 2023
The SPV is engaged in recal estate]Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects  such as  Speciall REIT : 100% REIT : 100%
Economic  Zone  (SEZ),  Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli
(Navi Mumbai), Pune and Pocharam
MBPPL (Hyderabad). The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 9 April 2015.
The SPV is engaged in real estate|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development  projects  such as  Special|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%
Economic  Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli
i (Navi Mumbai).The SPV is a deemed
Gigaplex distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 19 April 2016.
The SPV is engaged in development and|[Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
leasing/licensing of Information Technology
Sundew (IT) park, SEZ to different customers infTelangana State Industrial Infrastructure[Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Hyderabad. Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limited (11%)
The SPV is engaged in development and{Mindspace REIT : 9% Mindspace REIT : 89%
leasing/licensing of IT park to different
customers in Hyderabad. Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure| Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limited (11%)
Intime
The SPV is engaged in development and Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : §89%
KRIT leasing/licensing of IT park to different
customers in Hyderabad.
SN B Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure|Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
ﬁ‘“ (f Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limited (11%)




KRC Infra

The SPV is engaged in real estate]
development projects such as Special
Economic Zone (SEZ) and Information
Technology Parks. The SPV has its project
in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Kharadi, Pune
from 1 June 2019.

The SPV is also engaged in Facility
Management services.

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

Horizonview

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different
customers in Chennai.

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

The SPV has developed an Industrial park
for the purpose of letting out to different

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

customers in Paradigm building at Malad-
Mumbai and is being maintained and
operated by the SPV. The SPV also has a
commercial project in  Bandra Kurla
Complex, Mumbai.

Avacado

Basis of preparation

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprise the Condensed Consolidated Interim Balance Sheet as at
September 30, 2023, the Condensed Consolidated Interim Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Condensed Consolidated Interim
Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2023, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the half year
ended September 30, 2023, the Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at September 30 2023, the Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value for the half year ended
September 30 2023, and the Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter and half year ended
September 30, 2023, and a summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory information and other additional financial disclosures.

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real
fsiate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No.
SEBIVHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023 (“the REIT regulations”); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 ("Listing Regulations"); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with REIT
regulations (refer note 19 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation).

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on
October 30, 2023.

Statement of compliance to Ind AS:

These Condensed Consolidated Interim financial statements for the quarter and half year ended June 30, 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,as preseribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) to the extent
not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 19 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

Basis of Consolidation

Mindspace Business Parks Group consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements comprise the financial
statements of Mindspace Business parks REIT and its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in note 1. Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through
existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control
commences until the date control ceases.

The procedure for preparing Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are stated below:

a) The financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are consolidated for like items and intragroup balances and transactions for assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows between entities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are eliminated in full upon consolidation.

b) Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, which is a shareholder in Intime, KRIT and Sundew has not agreed to exchange their equity interest in
the SPVs (Intime, KRIT and Sundew), thus, Mindspace Business Parks REIT has recorded a non-controlling interests for these SPVs. The interest of non-controlling
shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

¢) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and Inter-company transactions and balances including unrealised profits are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

d) Mindspace Business Parks Group holds 4% of the equity share capital of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, a company involved in the real estate development.
Mindspace Business Parks Group is of the view that it is not able to exercise significant influence over Stargaze Properties Private Limited and hence it has not been
accounted using equity method.
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3.1

(a)

(b)

Material accounting policies

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Mindspace Busmess Parks Group’s functional currency and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which Mindspace Business Parks Group operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded
off to nearest million except otherwise stated.

(b) Basis of measurement

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are on the historical cost basis, except for the following:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument): measured at fair values;

- Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability less present value of defined obligations: Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit plan.

(¢) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in conforinity with generally accepted accounting principles in India {Ind AS) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Interim
iinancial Statements is included in the following notes:

Presentation of “Uinit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument (Note 19)

Petimation of lease term for revenue recognition

Estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment and investment property

Estimation of recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used and income taxes.

Impairment 2nd Fair valuation of Investment Property, Investment property under construction, Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress

Recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent liabilities

d) Current versus non-current classification

Mindspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification:

An asset is ticated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for ihe purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised winin iwelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless resiricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period.

are clessifioa as non-cuirent.

rent wnen:

A R weses

A liabiiity 1500
tes capected o be cettled in normal operating cycle;

- Tuis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- 1015 due to be cettled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is wo unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Mipdspace Business Marks Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax asseis cud liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Mindspace Business Parks Group has

identificd twelve months as is operating cycle.

(&) Measurement of fair values

Mindspace Business Parks Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Mindspace Business Parks Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses
the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy
in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

+ Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date.

« Level 2 inputs other than guoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

« Level 3- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into difterent levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments (o reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarzntee contracts are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 uniess on a case to case basis elected to be accounted for financial
guarantee as Insurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104,

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged when the assets are ready for their intended
use. Purchase price or construction cost is defined as any consideration paid or fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to Mindspace Business Parks

Group bubsequem cosls are mcluded in the asset s c:mymb amount or rc-.ogmscd as a separate asset as appropriate, cml),r when it is probable that future economic
aintenance are
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(c)

(d

—

(¢)

(a

(h)

(d)

Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life. The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, are listed in the table
below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of property, plant and equipment made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition /
deletion.

The assets and estimated useful life are as under:

Estimated Useful Life
Asset group 2
{in years)

Power assets Other assets |
Right to use - Leaschold land Balance Lease term - '
Buildings* 75/90 -
Plant and machinery 15 15
Electrical installation* 15 15
Computers 3 3
Temporary Structure® 1
Office equipment® 4 s
Furniture and fixtures™ - 7
Vehicles® - . 5 ]

* For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those preseribed under
Part C of Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013, :

(i} Based on internal assessiment the management believes the residual value of 4ll assets except Leasehold Land 15 estimated to be 5% of the eriginal cost of those
respective assets at SPV.

(2) Assets individuaily costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition.

(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation
accounted for on a piospective basis. '

De-recognition '

An item of property, plant and equipmient is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the assel.
went of an ner of property, plant and cquipmeni 15 determined as (he difference between the sales procesds and (he

Any gain or loss arising on (he disposal or retive
carrying amonnt of the asse: and 1s recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Cawital wark in proiess
Property, pient and ca.ipment under construction is disclosed as capital work in progress which is carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses. Cost comprises of
pareiveae wrice ard any attributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses incurred in bringing the asset to its working

coqrtiien fos its iuenled use.

Advgoce puiv anc ceoenditure incurred on acquisition / constiuction of propeity, plunt and equipment which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheci

dule ace diselosco under other non current assets as advances on capital account and capital work-in-progress respectively.

Intangibic assets

Recognition and measurer.ont

An intangible asset is an idunifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquited separately are initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separatcly sre carried at cost less impairment, if any

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expénditure on intermally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line method over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, fivm the date that they are available for use.

Estimated Useful Life
Asset group

(in years)
Oiher assets
Computer Softwares 3
Trademarks : 10

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporiing period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for en a
prospective basis.

De-recognition .
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expecied from use or disposal, gains or losses arising from derecognition of an

- intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds aird the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit

and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Investment property

Recognition and measurement

Properties including land, building and other assets, which are held either for long-term rental yield or for capital appreciation or for both, and which are not occupied
substantially by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified as investment property. y

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, including related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in
accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model i.e. Cost less depreciation less impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged when the
investment property is ready for its intended use. Cost comprises of direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project: construction, project
management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective prc!ject like insurance, design
and technical assistance, and construction overheads are allocated on a reasonable basis to the cost of the project.

Plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and electrical equipments which are physically attached to the commercial bl.llldlnbs are considered as part of
investment property. =

Acquisitions and disposals are accounted for at the date of completion of acquisitions and disposals.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount onl_v when it is probable lhat future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Depreciation "

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estlmaic(l by the management over the balance useful life. The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are higher. than, lower than or equal to those prescnhed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013 and listed in the table

below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of investment property made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition / deletion.

AR Estima.tcd Useful Life
(in years)

Right to use - Leasehold land Balance Lease term

Buildings* 75/90

Infrastructure and development 15

Roadwork* 15

Broadwalk, vantage café etc.* 50

Plant and machinery 15

Office equipment™* 4

Furniture and fixtures*®

Electrical installation™ 15

* For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those prescribed under
Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(1) Based on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leaschold Land is estimated.-to be 5% of the original cost of those -
respective assets at SPV.

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition.

(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimat ion
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Fair Value

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued. The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the Statement of Net assets at Fair
Value.

De-recognition
An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic bem,fits are expected

from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is de-recognised.

Investment properties under construction

Property that is being constructed for future use as investment property is accounted for as investment property under ccnstrumon until assets are ready for their intended
use. . ;¥ s ; =
Direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the
site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design and technical assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of
the project. .

Investment properties under construction represent the cost incurred in respect of areas under construction of the real estate d-.vclopmenl projects Iess unpaumenl losses, if
any.

Advance paid for acquisition of investment property which are not ready for their intended use at each balancc sheet daté are dlscloscd under other non current assets as
capital advance.

Impairment of assets

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
Mindspace Business Parks Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating unit
to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash
flows expected 1o arise from the continuing use of the assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequent]y reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimat i verable amount,
s0 that lhe mcreascd amount does not excccd the carrylm, amounl that would have been dclerlmned had no impairment Ioss been ugﬁl“ﬁ 31
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of cost of such
assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. A qualifying asset is an
asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the general borrowings.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing cost incurred by the SPVs on inter-company loans is continued to be capitalised only to the extent Mindspace Group has incurred external borrowing cost.

Inventories

Measurement of inventory

Inventories comprise of building material and components. Contractual work in progress, in respect of third party customers, is classified as work in progress. Mindspace
Business Parks Group measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories

The cost of inventories of building material and components and work in progress comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

Net realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Facility rentals

Revenue from property leased out under an operating lease is recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis, except where there is an uncertainty of ultimate
collection. :

Revenue from works contractual services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied by transfer of promised goods or services to a customer in accordance
with the agreement with the customer. For works contract arrangement, the performance obligation gets satisfied over time, and therefore, the revenue recognition is done
by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation from time to time as per the agreement with the customer. The progress is measured in
terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. The revenue is recognised to the extent of
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation satisfied. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for ransferring goods or services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party

Maintenance services
Maintenance income (s recognised over a period of time for services rendered to the customers.

Revenue from power supply

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting year. Mindspace
Business Parks Group determines surplus/deficit i.e. excess/ shortfall of aggregate gain over return on equity entitlement for the period in respect of its operations based on
the principles laid down under the respective Tariff Regulations as notified by Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), on the basis of the tariff order
issued by it.In respect of such surplus/deficit, appropriate adjustments as stipulated under the regulations are made during the period. Further, any adjustments that may
arise on annual performance review by the MERC under the tariff regulations is made afier the completion of such review.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract. Revenue
from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group performs its obligations to its customers and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the
consideration is probable. The timing of such recognition in case of sale of goods is when the control over the same is transferred to the customer.

Finance Lease

For assets let out under finance lease, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Rentals received are
accounted for as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases are apportioned between the finance income and the
reduction of the outstanding receivable. The finance income allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining net investment in the finance lease.

Contingent rents are recorded as income in the periods in which they are carned.

Sale of surplus construction material and serap
Revenue from sale of surplus construction material and scrap is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods net of the expected removal cost.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income :

(i) Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT group has right to receive payment is established.

(ii) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

(iii) Delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments are recognised, on time proportion basis, except when there is uncertainty of ultimate collection.

Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in equity and other comprehensive
income respectively.

Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by end of reporting period.
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(b) Deferred tax

[

Deferred tax asset/liability is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the
assel is realised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which Mindspace Business Parks Group expeets, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction; and

- Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements to the extent that Mindspace Business Park Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not

reverse in the foreseeable future;

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if’ there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settie current tax liabilities and asscts on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities wiil
be realised simultaneously.

for operations carried out under tax holiday period (801A benefits of Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have been established for the tax
consequences of those temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends.

In the situations where one or more units of the Group are entitled to a tax holiday under the tax law, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned unit's gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday
period. Deferred tax i respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate.
However, the Group restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred lax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

M eredit entidement is recognized as an asset only when and to the exient there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period.
vew v which LUAT eredit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
A showin as MAT eredit entitlement under deferred tax assets. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is written
Aty o the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period.

Varaings per unit (FPU):
e basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the unit holders of Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number of units
saistandizy duning the repoiting period. The number of units used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units considered for

‘denving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of umts which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units.

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing diluted earnings per unit,
only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that Mindspace
Business Parks Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to seitle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate

- that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there 1s a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there
is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of sutflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises fiom past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace Business Parks Group.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the period-end and not covered by forward contracts, are translated at the
period-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary
foreign currency items are carried at cost.
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(a)
(i)

Leases

As a Lessor

Mindspace Business Parks Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties.

Leases for which Mindspace Business Parks Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When Mindspace Business Parks Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head Jease and the sublease as two scparatc contracts. [he sublease is classified as a
finance or operating iease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating ieases is recognised on a straight-line basis over-the term of the relevant lease and presented as unbilled revenue in other financial assets.
‘Initial direct costs such as brokerage expenses incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating lease are capitalised to the carrying amount of leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. '

Amounts due from lessezs under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of Mindspice Business Parks Group's net investment in the leases. Finance
loase income is allocated to reporting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases

As a ] essee ) )

Mindspace Busmess Parks Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of ¢ contract. Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and 2 sorresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreemenis in which it i2 the Izsses, gxcept for short-term leases ( defined as leases with a lease term of 12
montiis.or lessyand leases of low value assets. For these leases, Mindspace Business Paiks (roup recogmises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
“basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the fime pattern in wihich cconomic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
The lease fiability is inuially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the
lease., [T this rate cannot be readily determined, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses s ineremenial borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

= fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease inceniives:

« variable fease payments that depend on an index or rate, imtially measured using the index or rate at the cormmencement date;

+ the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; .

» payments of penalties for tlerminating the lease, if the lease term refiects the exercise of an opticn to tenninate the lease

The lease liability is presented separately as part of Financial Liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated balance sheet. The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrving amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the «ffeciive interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
pavmenis made.

‘Mindspace Business Parks Croup remeasures the iou 1biliy {and makes a corresponding adjusiment to the related right-of-use assel} whenever

#ihe lense term has changed or there is a (hun;,g in the assessiment of exercise of a puuchase option, in which case the lease liability is renieasured by discounting th.
i =pents usive a revised discount

nenie ~hange due to changes in an mdc.( or rale or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the fcase liabihty
curenyg the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in whao
ont rate is used),

is t-adified and the lease modification 1s not accounicd for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
: revised discount rate.

AR

j comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payiments made at or before the commencement day and any iniat

aires gty . Tney are bllh&(‘qllﬁ"]]ﬂ) measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. .

Wht‘i‘c\"t. Minds: ace Business Parks Group incurs en obligation for costs to dismantie and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
Saect 1 iie comdition required by the terms and conditons of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingen

L mhllmq,s dnd Contingent Assets’. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying assct.

Mindspace Business Parks Group applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets io determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identificd

impairment loss as described in Note 3.5.

Variable rents that do not depend on'an index or rate are not included in the measurenent the iease liability and the night-ot-use asset. The related payraents are recoginsed

as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line * other expenses” in the Condensed

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fimanecial instraments
Illitia] rel:ugnition unrl measurement

- party to a contract embodying the related financial insiruments.,

i Al! Im:!nu:ii dsscw nnancnal liabilities arc imtmily mcasurcd at far vah\e.. pius in case uf financial assets’ financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through prorit or

loss (FVTFL), transaction costs that are attiibutable t¢ the acquisition or.issue of financ scts/ financial habilities are added to or deducted, as the case may be, from the
fair value of such assets or liabilities. Transaction costs directly attributablé to the acquisition of financial asscts or financial liabilities at fair value through profit o loss
are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a'significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Financial asceis:

Cilassification of financial assets:
Mindspace Busiress Parks Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurcmeni categories:
= those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

{1i) The classification is.done depending upon Mindspace Business Parks Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash

[ F or investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment 1s held.

(1v) Mindspace Business Parks Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.




(b)
(i)

(ii)

(d)

(h)

(c)

Subsequent Measurement
Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspace Business Parks Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of
{he asset. There are three measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its debt instruments: "

Financial assets at amortised cost o o

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. ;

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI) i £, )

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by
selling financial assets o

Financial assets at fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL) )

Financial assets are subsequently measured ai fair value through the C ondensed Consolidated Statemert of Profit.and Loss unless 1t is measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities ac fair value
through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the C ondensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss..

Equity instruments: cued 3 i s :

Mindspace Business Parks Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Ther¢ are two measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks
Group classifies ils equity mstruments: o

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL: b y
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless Mindspace Business Parks Group irevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equity instruments which are not held for trading. :

Investrments in equity instruments at FVTOCI:

On initial recognition, Mindspace Business Parks Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the veserve for ‘egeity instruments trough other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is nol reclassified to Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the mivestments, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Teansis creat of fnamcial 2evets:

« Parks Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease receivables,
o e givahles, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade reccivables, Mindspace Business Parks Group measures the loss allowance at
wrnt egual to Lifttime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose ol measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, Mindspace Business
used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into

seenun. hasterice! waxdit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Dizveconriting o Vi anciat assets:
A financial asset is prumaril; derecognised when
(i) the right to receive cash Cows from the asset b, expived, or .
(ii) Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and
Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assct, or :
Mindspace Business Parks Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at FVOCI), the differences between the carrying amounts measured at the
date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the SPV is recognised as a separate asset or liability. -

Financiai liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilitics and equity instrumentsissued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified according fo. the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. : : 4 -

Equity instruments ; .

An equity insirument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of Mindspace Business Parks Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instrument is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equily instruments.

Compound financial instruments ) : : : .

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financral liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash o1 another financial asset for a fixed number of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments is an equity
instrument. £ e - i, S o ¥

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.

This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion (o

proceeds. Tr g ﬂr} sts.relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability coff T Bl p the
j omponent and are amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument using the effective interest method. Ly

Q
o
o

e gross
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(d) Financial Liabilities

.

2)

Recognition, measurement and classification

Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Management determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification. :

~Mindspace Business Parks Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Subsequent

méasurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss or at amortized cost. All changes in
fair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss . Amortised cost category is applicable to loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables. After initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are recognized in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized. '

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial asseis and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or Lo realise the assets and setile the liabilities simuitancously.

Cash and cash equivalents )

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits, other shori-term, highly liquid mvestments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible {6 known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Statement of Cash flow
Cash flow is reported using the indireet method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accrvals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are segregated.

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of Mindspace Business Parks Group’s cash management.

As per para § of Ind AS 7 “where bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafls are included as a
componenti of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafi, in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, is included as ‘borrowings’ under Financial Liabilities.

Employes henefits plan
Cigecezess pursneni to I AT - 1Y aplayee beneties”

Shevi wor wwployee henefits

nsver. benetiis payable wholly within twelve months of' rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, etc. and are
1, Gae parind in which the employee rendered the related services. The undiscounted amount of short-ierm employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange

wees venasied by employees is recognised as an expense during the period.

reseniss
for e
| eng teom employee benefits

Defiped contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when
services are rendered by tie employees. Mindspace Business Parks Group's provident fund contribution, i respeet of certain employees, is made to a governmcnt
administered fund and charged as an expense. The above benefits are classified as defined contribution schemes as Mindspace Business Parks Group has no further
defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plan

Mindspace Business Parks Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the gratuity liability based on
internal calculation based on the number of years completed and last drawn basic salary as mentioned in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The liability or asset
recognised ini the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
fair value of plan assets, if any. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by actuaries / SPVs using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
{he end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the defined bencefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is inciuded in employee benefit expense in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. '

Other long term employee benefits - Compensated absences

Henefits under compensated absences are accounted as other long-term employee benehils. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the liability for compensated
absences based on internal caleulation which is determined on the basis of leave credited to employee’s account and the last drawn salary. Mindspace Business Parks
Gioup's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to oe seitled in future, that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and previous years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation / by SPVs using the
projected unit eredit method. Remeasurement is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 1.oss in the period in which they arise. Compensated absences
which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period n which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability.

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax

Mindspace Business Parks Group has elected to present carings before interest, depreciation and amertisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and fax as
a separate line item on the face of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Mindspace Business Parks Group measures carnings before interest,
depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, except ional items and tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations.

Subsequent events

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the
Financial Statements are issu_ed, The Consolidated Financial Statements have their own date of authorisation, which differs from that gF
entities which are pa FMind REIT group. Therefore, when preparing the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statementg
f ncial statements.

epsed Consolidated
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Errors and estimates

Mindspace Business Parks Group revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information to the users of the Condensed Consolidated Interim financial statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively.

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the
period(s) of change. ity

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the error is
discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated.

Non-current assets held for sale :

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. Such assets
are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses
on re-measurement are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. '

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties are no longer amortised or depreciated, and any equity-
accounted investee is no longer equity accounied.
Segment Information

Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment is business segments.

Business segment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate' and "power distribution’, which are determined based on the internal organisation and
management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns. The Board of directors of the
manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM). CODM cvaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on analysis
of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below. :

Real estate segment

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Fconomic Zone (SEZ), Information Téchnology Parks and other commercial assets .The
Group has its project/properties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, 1T parks and commercial assets
including incidental activities.

Power distribution
The state power regtilator ias taken on record fuc. SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power. The approved
SPVs heing Deemed Distrinator, supplies power te customers within the notified SEZ

ui nformation
Parks Group's operations are based in India and therefore Mindspace Business Parks Group has only one geographical segment - India.

fai'V A
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Maa conitrelling htliests

Mot -contrelling 1vierests represent the share of reserves and capital atiributable to the shareholders of the $PVs who have not agreed to exchange their shares in the SPVs
iy Wi <4 Mowisoace RETT and will not become the unitholders of Mindspace REIT. Below is the list of shareholders of the SPVs for whoin non-controlling interest has
heen recognised Non-conte ting interests 1 Gie resuits and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
Condensed Consolidated Staiement of Changes i Fguaity and Condensed Balance Sheet .

SPY " Sharcholder % Holding in SPV
(As on reporting date)
KRIT Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
Intime Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
Sundew Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%

Corporation Limited

Ind AS 110 requires entities to attribute the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of Mindspace REIT and to the non-controtling
interests. This requircment needs to be followed even if this results in the non-controlling inerests having a deficit balance.
Cash distribution to unit holders

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT
Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directos of the Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in other equity.

Distribution Policy
['he Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash flows generated from Mindspace REIT’s assets and investments.

In terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Reguiations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed to Mindspace REIT,
in proportion of their shareholding in the Asset SPV, subjeet to applicable provisions of the Companies Act or the LLP Act. Presently, NDCF to be received by Mindspace
REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from the Asset SPVs,
sale proceeds out of disposal of investments if any or assets directly held by Mindspzce REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as
may be permissible under the applicable law.

The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions”) to the Unitholders. Such
REIT Distributions shall be declared and made for every quarter of a Financizal Year.
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Recent Pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS
which are effective from April 01, 2023:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements .

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together
with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. This amendment
does not have any significant impact in the financial statements. : A

Ind AS'12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of
the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financiai statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting csumarcs “The definition of a change in accauntmg estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in-financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty. This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

There were certain amendiments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time for the period ended 30 September 2023, but either the same are not
relevant or do not have an impact on the consolidated Interim financial statements of the Group.
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

8 Non Current Investment

Particulars

As at
30 September 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Financial assets

Investments in equity instruments

Unquoted equity shares measured at FVTOCI

2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
(31 March 2023 : 2,000)

Unquoted investment in Government Securities at amortised cost

7.61% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000)
8.24% GOI 2027 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000)

7.17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000)
7.26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2023: 22,000)
7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2023: 22,000)
6.67% GOI 2050 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 8,000 units (31 March 2023: 8,000)

7.72% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 10,000 units (31 March 2023: 10,000)

6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 11,300 units , (31 March 2023: 11,300)

7.26% GOI 2029 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 18,000 units (31 March 2023: 18,000)

7.40% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 28,700 units (31 March 2023: 28,700)

8.33% GOI 2036 3ond (Face value Rs 100), 21,210 units (31 March 2023: 21,210)

7.06% GOI 2046 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 12,000 units (31 March 2023: 12,000)

8.33% GOI 2036 B.on-‘i (Face value Rs 100), 1,790 units (31 March 2023: 1,790)

6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 28,000 units (31 March 2023: 28,000)

6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 17,700 units (31 March 2023: 17,700)

7.36% GS 2052; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,200 units (31 March 2023: Nil)

6.99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 10,400 units (31 March 2023: Nil)

6.99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,037 units (31 March 2023: Nil)

6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Fave Value Rs 100), 24700 units (31 March 2023: Nil)

6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 14,900 units (31 March 2023: Nil)

e Bd e e e BB W W

—_ N D e S N W S = W

O S = W) W R = e = )RR W W

fd
=

Investments measured at cost (gross)

Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments measured at amortised cost

Aggregate amount of impairment recognised

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

9 Other financial assets (Non current)

Particulars

As at
30 September 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

67

Fixed deposits with banks* 29
Unbilled revenue 1,067 1,058
Interest receivable = 23
Finance lease receivable 1,430 844
Security deposits for development rights - 60
Security deposits 520 497
Other receivables 10 15

3,094 2,526

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 67 million (31 March 2023 — 29 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked

for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

10 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Deferred tax assets (net) 388 473
388 473
11 Non-current Tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Advance Tax (net of provision for tax) 838 928
838 928
12 Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 378 293
Balances with government authorities 107 237
Prepaid expenses 67 50
552 580
13 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Building materials and components 36 40
Inventory of Equipment 6 32
42 72
14 Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured
Considered good 1,042 572
Credit impaired 48 82
Less: loss allowance (48) (82)
1,042 572
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17

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 3 3
Balances with banks
- in current accounts* 3,171 3,176
- in escrow accounts 55 3
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than
three months 80 880
3,309 4,062

*Includes balance with bank of Rs 0 million as on 30 September 2023 (31 March 2023: Rs 0 million) for unpaid distributions.

Other bank balances

Particulars

As at
30 September 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months and less than

twelve months* 2,455 78
Balance with banks** 239 128
2,694 206

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 94 million (31 March 2023 — 78 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked
for Debenture Redemption Reserve,

** These are amounts, deposited in separate escrow accounts, earmarked for on-going Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects.

Other financial assets (Current)

Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable

- on fixed deposits 72 4
- from others 6 11
Interest accrued but not due
- on fixed deposits 4 1
- from others 2 3
Security deposits 163 170
Fixed deposits with banks* 1,708 322
Unbilled revenue 1,420 1,613
Less: loss allowance for Unbilled revenue (57) -
Finance lease receivable 392 309
Other receivables®*
- Considered good 76 102
- Credit impaired 1 1
Less: loss allowance (1) (1)
3,786 2,535

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 358 million (31 March 2023 — 322 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and
carmarked for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

## Refer Note 48 for related party disclosure.

Other current assets
Particulars As at As at

30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Deposit / advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 128 330
Loan to staff 0 0
Balances with government authorities 144 149
Prepaid expenses 219 107
Other receivables 1 -

492 586




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated)

(a)

(b)

()

18

20

Corpus

Corpus

Asat 1 April 2022 0

Changes during the year f

Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 0

Asat 1 April 2023 0

Changes during the period =

Closing balance as at 30 September 2023 0

Unit Capital
A. Unit Capital No. Amount
As at 1 April 2022 593,018,182 162,839
Changes during the year - -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 593,018,182 162,839
As at 1 April 2023 593,018,182 162,839
Changes during the period 2 =
Closing balance as at 30 Scr_tcmher 2023 593,018,182 162,839
Terms/rights attached to Units and other disclosures
The Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Units is entitled to one vote per unit. The
Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust on quarterly basis in accordance with REIT Regulations/ in terms of the
Distribution Policy. The Board of directors of Investment Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Units held by the
Unitholders. The Trust declares and pays distnbutions in Indian Rupees.
Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace Business Parks REIT is required to distribute 1o Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash flows
of Mindspace Business Parks REIT for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Mindspace Business Parks
REIT to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument which contains equity and liability components in accordance
with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023 issued
under the REIT Regulations, the Unitholders’ funds have been presented as “Equity™ in order to comply with the requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI
master circular dated 6 July 2023 dealing with the mini presentation and disclosure requir for key fi ial . Consi with Unit Capital being
classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved by the Board of
Directors of Investment Manager
Unitholders holding more than 5 percent Units in the Trust
Name of the unitholder As at 30 September 2023 As at 31 March 2023

No of Units %o holding No of Units %o holding

Platinum [llumination A 2018 Trust 54,375,000 9.17% 54,375,000 9.17%
Anbee Constructions LLP 35,404,890 5.97% 35,404,890 5.97%
Cape Trading LLP 35,438,895 5.98% 35,404,890 5.97%
Chandru Lachmandas Raheja 32,634,433 5.50% 32634433 5.50%
Capstan Trading LLP 41,095,719 6.93% 41,095.719 6.93%
Casa Maria Properties LLP 46,820,719 7.90% 46,820,719 7.90%
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP. 41,095,719 6.93% 41,095,719 6.93%
Raghukool Estate Develop LLP 42,004,546 7.08% 41,937,069 7.07%
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 36,596,296 6.17% 36,596,296 6.17%
The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till the balance sheet date.
Further, the Trust had issued an aggregate of 36,363,600 Units for cash at Rs. 275 per unit and 556,654,582 Units al a price of Rs. 275 per unit for consideration other
than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date

Other Equity*

Particulars As at As at

30 September 2023 31 March 2023

Reserves and Surplus

Retained eamings (18,423) (15,546)
Debenture redemption reserve 400 534
(18,023) (15,012)

*Refer Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's equity for detailed movement in other equity balances.

Retained earnings :

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and acc lated under the |
period, the profit/loss after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained eamings account.

of retamed earnings, At the end of the

Debenture redemption reserve
As per the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (amended), SPVs are required to create Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) out of profits, which is

available for payment of dividend, equal to 10% of the amount of debentures issued. Accordingly, the SPVs have created DRR out of their profits in terms of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)Rules, 2014 (as amended) which would be wtilized for redemption of debentures at the time of its maturity.
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21 A

21 A(i)

Borrowings (Non-current)

As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

Particulars

Secured

Terms loans

- from banks 19,047 15,276
- from other parties 3,161 1,578

Flexi term loan - 380

Debentures

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, - 3,741
principal protected — market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures

(“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses, at

amortised cost) (refer Note 21 B(ii))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- - 750
convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (refer Note 21 B(iii))

Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumulative, - 3,986
Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertiable Debentures (Sundew

NCD 1) (refer Note 21 B(iv))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- 4,980 4,971
convertible debentures (NCD Series 3) (net of issue expenses, at amortised

cost) (refer Note 21 B(v))

Senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, 4,972 4,969
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD Series 4”) (Refer note 21

[ETETTANY

Secured, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, 5,465 5,461

redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1™) (net
of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (refer Note 21 B(viii))

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,973 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 6) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (refer Note 21 B(ix))

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,984 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 7) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (refer Note 21 B(x))

Bonds - Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cummulative, Taxable, - 4,730
Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds (MBPPL NCB 1) (Refer
note 21 B(vi))

47,582 45,842

Repayment terms, rate of interest and security details

Gigaplex
Note 1: Lender: Term loan current maturities of long-term debt - INR 773 million (31 March 2023 - INR 820 million); Bank Overdraft of INR 206 million (31 March

2023 : INR 6 million)

(1) Nature of securities:
Exclusive EM/ RM charge of Building No.1 along with Pari-Passu charge on all that piece or parcel of land known as Plot No. IT- 5 in the Trans Thane Creek (T.T.C.)

Industrial Area, MIDC (Airoli Knowledge Park) ,Navi Mumbai admeasurements, 2,02,300 Square Meters.

Exclusive charge on entire current assets (including receivables, moveable fixed assets and cash flows) and moveable fixed assets, both present and future, of Building

No. L.

Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over;

a) All the rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever, of the Borrower, in the contracts, agreements, clearances, loss protection covers, ete,
pertaining to Building No.1. (b) all the rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever, of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guarantee, performance
bond provided by any counterparty to the Borrower, pertaining to Building No.1 (c) all the rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever, of the
Borrower in the insurance contracts, policies, insurance proceeds, procured by the Borrower or procured by any of its contractors favouring the Borrower, pertaining to
Building No.1.

(2) Terms for repayment:

The term loan from Lender carries interest rate of 8.25% p.a. payable monthly.

The said loan shall be repaid in structured 36 monthly installment, beginning from the end of the month of the date of first disbursement of rupee term loan and ending

on January 31, 2024,

Note 2: Lender: Term loans - INR 1,264 million (31 March 2023 : INR 1,279 million); Current maturities of long-term debt - INR 29 million (31 March 2023 : INR 26
million)

(1) Nature of securities:

i) Hypotheciation of movebale fixed asset pertaining to property, present and future, ii) Hypotheciation of current asset and receivables pertaining to property , present
and future iii) Escrow account and Debt service reserve account (DSRA), iv) Charge by way of Registered Mortgage Mortgage of immovable assets peratining to
certain floor/unit of IT building named Building 4, v) Pari-Passu charge by way of registered mortgage on all that piece or parcel of land known as Plot No. IT- 5 in the
Trans Thane Creek (T.T.C.) Industrial Area, MIDC (Airoli Knowledge Park) ,Navi Mumbai admeasurements, 2,02,345 Square Meters .

(2) Terms for repayment:
The term loan from Lender carries interest rate of 8.60% p.a. payable monthly.

The said loan shall be repaid in srru\t:h:rn'&iiﬁmQ\ ly installment, beginning from the end of the month of the date of first disburser
on August 31, 2034, Vi N
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Horizonview
Note 1: Lender : Term Loan current Maturities of Term Loan of INR 1,000 Million (31 March 2023 : INR 1,000 million); Bank Overdraft of INR 220 million (31 March

2023 : INR 175 million)

(1) Nature of securities:
(i) First and exclusive charge through registered mortgage over units comprising of leasable area of 4.68 lacs sq. fl. i.e. company’s share in Tower 'B' located at

Poonamallee Road, Porur, Chennai, alongwith proportionate car parks, open space, amenities and undivided share of land (present and future) with all rights
appurtenants there to along with right of way 1o be herein referred to as "Security Property".

(ii) together with first and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on Current Assets, Movable Properties, Escrow Account, Receivables and Specific Assets related to
Tower B, commerzone Porur, located at Mount Poonamallee High Road, Porur, Chennai

(iii) Unconditional and irrevocable guarantee from Mindspace Business Parks REIT.

(2) Terms of repayment:

Bullet repayment at the end of the month after 36 months from the date of first disbursement.. The loan carries interest rate 9.15% p.a. for Term Loan facility and 8.25%
for the OD facility (Sublimit of Term loan).

Note 2: Lender: Term Loan of INR 1,479 million (31 March 2023 : INR 1,485 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 12 million (31 March 2023 : INR 8
million). Flexi term loan of INR Nil miilion (31 March 2023 : INR 0 million).

(1) Nature of securities:

(i) Charge over leasable area of 0.342 Mn Sq Ft. situated on the 3rd to the 9th floor in Tower A, Commerzone comprising of two towers being Tower A and Tower B
consisting of a combined triple basement, ground floor plus nine office floor, constructed on the land admeasuring approximately 5 acres 51 cents (equivalent to
22,425.13 square meters) as per revenue records bearing Survey No.25/3A, Survey No.25/4H5, Survey No.25/4H6B and Survey No.25/41 situate at 111/168, Porur
village, Ambattur Taluk, Thiruvallur District, D.No.111 Mount Poonamallee High Road, Porur, Chennai 600 116.

(ii) Hypothecation of receivables pertaining to Horizonview's share of Units in Tower A through Escrow account

(2) Terms of repayment:
Repayment to be done through staggered monthly installment till November 2036. The loan carries interest rate 8.3% for the entire facility.

KRC infra
Note 1: Lender: Term Loan of INR 4,199 million (31 March 2023: INR 4,449 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 488 million (31 March 2023 : INR
451 million) and Bank Overdraft of INR 558 million (31 March 2023 : INR 459 million).

Terms Loans from Lender is secured by way of Mortgage on the project Land and Building of R1 and R4.

(1) Nature of securities:

a. Exclusive registered mortgage over project Land & Building for R1 and Exclusive registered mortgage over project Land & Building for R4,
b. Exclusive charge over receivables of Building R1 and Exclusive charge over receivables of Building R4

¢. Fixed deposit pledged - DSRA equivalent to 3 months interest and principal

d. Corporte Guarantee from Mindspace REIT

(2) Terms of repayment:
Repayment in 110 instalments upto February 10, 2030.The overdraft facility is payable on demand. Term Loan carries interest rate of 8.45% p.a.

Note 2: Lender: Term Loan of INR 1,974 million (31 March 2023 : INR 467 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 25 million (31 March 2023 : INR 27
million). Terms Loans from Lender is secured by way of Mortgage on the project Land and Building of R3

(1) Nature of securities:

a. Exclusive Mortgage over Floor 1,2,3,4,5,12 and 13 of building R3 alongwith land appurtenant thereto

b. Exclusive charge over receivables from Floor 1,2,3,4,5,12 and 13 of building R3

c. Fixed deposit pledged - DSRA equivalent to 3 months interest and principal

d. Corporte Guarantee from Mindspace REIT

(2) Terms of repayment:

Repayment in 180 instalments upto March 31, 2038, The overdraft facility is repayable over 35 monthly installments starting from 31 May 2035 . Term Loan carries
interest rate of 8.50% p.a.

MBPPL

Note 1: Lender : Term Loan of INR 1,729 million (31 March 2023 : INR 1,851 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 228 million (31 March 2023 : INR
2,613 million); Bank Overdraft of INR 763 million (31 March 2023 : INR Nil million)

Nature of securities:

Term loan and overdraft from Lender are secured by assignment of lease rent receivable and exclusive charge on property being all that piece and parcel of land
together with the building No.1, 3 and 4 at Airoli constructed thereon.

Exelusive 1st Charge over all the current assets, present and future, including Cashflow / rentals arising out of Building No. 1, 3 & 4. (Excluding the corresponding
electricity receivables of Bldg. No. 1,3 & 4).

Exclusive hypothecation charge on all the movable fixed assets of the property, both present and future.

Term loan and overdraft from Axis Bank Limited are secured by exclusive charge by way of mortgage of the building No. 2, 7, § & 9 (only floor no 6,7,8) alongwith
undivided interest in the appurtenant land thereon at Mindspace Airoli East. Exclusive charge on the piece and parcel of land at Airoli east has been modified to pari-
passu charge on entire land parcel and amended modification deed is in the process of execution.

Exclusive charge on the future cash flows of lease rentals to be received from and out of the Building 2,7.8, 9(only floor no 6,7,8).

Terms of repayment:

Term loan of Rs 3,000 million is repayable 168 monthly installments starting from 30 September 2018. The loan carries interest rate of 9.40%

Overdraft of Rs. 500 million is repayable alongwith the term loans and carries interest rate of 9.40% p.a. currently.

Term loan of Rs 2,530 million is repayable 156 monthly installments starting from 27 March 2020. The loan carries interest rate of 9.15%p ble
monthly.

\Overdraft of Rs. 1,500 million is repayable alongwith the term loans and carries interest rate of 9.65% p.a. currently.
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‘*‘ﬁ'\' ‘Nole 1: Lender : Term Loan INR 2,790 million (31 March 2023 : INR 2,838 million); Current maturities of long term borrowings
\m\ﬁ million) and Bank Overdraft of INR 138 million (31 March 2023 : INR 196 million)

Nature of securities:

(a)(i) first and exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on land admeasuring approx. 23,400 sq. meters located at Survey No. 35, Hissa No. 9+10+11+12B,
Ahmednagar Road, Vadgaon Sheri, Pune - 411014 along with building/structures constructed/to be constructed thereon admeasuring Approx. 4.63 lakh sq.ft of leasable
carpet area and car parking'’s and on all the movable fixed assets in the building excluding those owned by the lessees;

(a)(ii) Eserow of receivables from sale/lease/transfer of the property offered as security including all revenues generated from existing and future lessees of the property:
(a)(iii) An amount equivalent to one months Debt Servicing obligation during the entire Tenure of the Facility shall be maintained in the (DSRA) maintained with
KMBL at all times from the date of first disbursement.

Terms of repayment:

Term Loan Facility 1 : Term loan of 2,800 million is obtained at an interest rate of 9.85% linked to Repo rate with quarterly reset and is repayable in 144 monthly
installments starting from the month after date of first disbursement.

Term Loan Facility 2 : Term Loan is obtained at an interest rate of 9.05% linked to 1 Yr KMCLR with Yearly reset and is Repayable in 144 monthly installments after
the moratorium of 44 months from the date of first disbursement. Overdraft Facility is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.05%

Note 3: Lender : Term Loan of INR 3,360 million (31 March 2023 : INR 1,677 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 91 million (31 March 2023 : INR
46 million) and Bank Overdraft of INR Nil million (31 March 2023 : INR 4 million)

Nature of securities:

1) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on the entire Building Nos. 5 & 6 consisting of stilt, 2 parking floors and 8 office floors having a chargeable arca of
about 0.86 Mn sq. ft. which is constructed on the larger piece of leasehold land known as Plot No. 3 in the Kalwa Industrial Area within the village limits of Ilthan and
Airavali Taluka and registration sub-district Thane district and registration district Thane contained by admeasurement 1,98,997 square meters or thereabouts; along
with first pari-passu charge on the Land.

2) First and exclusive charge over the lease rentals (receivables) from tenants of building no. 5&6 at Mind Space, Airoli, Navi Mumbai, District Thane, Maharashtra
through an Escrow account

Terms of repayment:
Term loan is obtained at an interest rate of 8.05% with yearly reset and is repayable in 180 monthly installments.
The overdraft facility is repayable over 25 monthly installments starting from 15 March 2036 . The Overdraft facility carries an interest rate of 8.05% per annum

KRIT
Note 1: Lender : Overdraft facility of INR 409 million (31 March 2023 : INR 283 million)

Nature of securities:
Overdraft limit from Lender is secured with following:

Primary: Exclusive charge on the entire assets, both movables (excluding current assets) and immoveable of the Borrower in the Property, present and future

Collateral:

a) Exclusive security charge on the entire current assets of the Borrower in the Property, present and future.

b) Property is defined as Bldg. no 5 (alongwith appurtenant land thereto) leased to BA Continuum Solutions - with leasable area of ~ 1.14 lakhs sq ft and Floor | & 2
(alongwith proportionate undivided interest in the land appurtenant thereto) of Bldg no 4A & B leased to EIT Services India Pvt Lid - with leasable area of ~ 0.43 lakhs
sq ft".

Terms of repayment:

Bank overdraft is repayable on demand

Sundew Properties Limited
Note 1: 'Lender: Term Loan INR 677 million (31 March 2023 : INR 705 million); Current maturities of long-term debt INR 54 million (31 March 2023 : INR 48
million); Bank Overdraft INR 432 million (31 March 2023 : INR 96 million)

Nature of securities:

"Term loan and Bank Overdraft from Lender is secured by way of charge on All the piece & parcel of Building 14 together with sub-plot of land located at Survey no. 64,
situated at Madhapur Village, Serilngampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad admeasuring approximately 14,456.45 sq. mirs., having total leasable area of
around 529,030 sq. fl. including all the structures thereon both present & future, along with all the development potential arising thereon including additional
development potential in the form of TDR, premium FSI, etc., both present and future (“Property™) and Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Scheduled
Receivables and all insurance proceeds, both present and future pertaining to the Property and Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Escrow Account along
with all monies credited/deposited therein (in whatever form the same may be), and all investments in respect thereof (in whatever form the same may be) pertaining to
the Property.

Terms of repayment:
'Repayable in 120 monthly instalments of varying amounts.
The Rupee Term loan facility currently carries an interest rate of 8.45% per annum and the Overdraft facility carries an interest rate of 8.90% per annum

Note 2: Lender : Non current borrowings of INR 1,682 million (31 March 2023 : INR 93 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 86 million (31 March

2023 : INR 4 million).
Flexi term loan of INR NIL miilion (31 March 2023 : INR 380 million); Current maturities of Flexi term loan of INR NIL million (31 March 2023 : INR 10 million)

Nature of securities:

1. First and Exclusive charge by way of Equitable mortgage on the demarcated portion of the land admeasuring about 12,008.46 sq. mtrs (2.96 acres) (de-notified SEZ
Portion) being a portion of the larger property together with the Building No. 11 consisting of 3 basement, 1 stilt, 1 (Parking + office) and 13 office floors admeasuring
about 6,02,456 sq. fi. at the Borrower's SEZ/NON SEZ project comprising of 40.25 acres land (larger Property) bearing Survey No. 64 (part) being and situated at
Madhapur Village, Serilingmpally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad 500081

2. First and exclusive charge over the lease rentals (receivables) from tenants of building no. 11 siutated at Mindspace Cyberabad, Madhapur, Hyderabad through an
Escrow account

Terms of repayment:

Repayable in 156 staggered monthly instalments. The entire facility currently carries an interest rate of 8.00% per annum.

Avacado

/
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Nature of securities:

Loan from Lender has been secured by way

1) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on all the piece & parcel of land located at Plot no. C-61, admeasuring approx. 3,818.19 square meters, G-Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai together with the structure constructed thereon consisting of two basements and ground plus eight upper floors all
collectively admeasuring 1,46,350 square feet) along with any additional TDR.

2) Exclusive charge on movable fixed, current assets and receivables both present and future associated with the Property.

The Rupee term loan carries interest rate of 8.45% per annum and the Overdraft facility carries an interest rate of 8.90% per annum

Terms of repayment:
Loan is repayable in 148 monthly installments.

Mindspace REIT

In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD
Series 1) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs, 2,000,000,000 (Rupees two thousand million only) with a coupon rate of
6.45% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i.e. 16 December 2023. The tenure of the said NCD Series 1 is 36 months from 17 December 2020, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 1 was listed on BSE Limited on 21 December 2020.

Security terms

NCD Series 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):
a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 414,599 Sq.
Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 1 and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sq. ft. in building no. 1 and approx. 371,399 in building no. 5) together with the
proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 18,264 sq. mtrs on which the said two building no. 1 and
5, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties™) of
NCD Series 1.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received save and except any common area maintenance charges payable to
MBBPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 16 December 2023, and accordingly the same has

been classified as current maturity of long term debt as on 30 September 2023

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.
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In March 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to
Rs. 3,750,000,000 (Rupees three thousand seven hundred fifty million only). The tenure of the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of
allotment of the MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 17 May 2024. The coupon payoff structure is
linked to condition where the payoff will be fixed on the final fixing date i.e. 16 April 2024. If identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is
greater than 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will be 6.65% p.a. If identified 10 year G-Sec’s last traded price as
on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date, the coupon rate will be zero percent. As per the valuers report in respect
of valuation of these MLD Series 2, the probability of occurrence of such an event (last traded price of identified 10 year G-Sec on final fixing date being less than or
equal to 25% of its last traded price on initial fixing date) is remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero.

This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

MLD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders):
a) First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings
no. 12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx. 12,69,140 sq. fi. in building no.12A and approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in building no. 12B) together with
the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842 sq. mtrs on which the said two building no.12A
and 12B, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District,
Hyderabad (“Mortgaged Properties”), for MLD Series 2.

b) First ranking exclusive charge created by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Properties of MLD Series 2.

c) A charge on the escrow account created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of Sundew shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.
d) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew.

Redemption terms:

a) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024. accordingly the same has been
classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 30 September 2023.

b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Series 2 if the rating is downgraded to A+,

¢) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenfure Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 [ll.1irly) business days notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each Debenture.

In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 750 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD
Series 2”) having face value of Rs, 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 750,000,000 (Rupees seven hundred fifty million only) with a coupon rate
of 6.6861% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2021, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i.e. 17 May 2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of allotment.

NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

NCD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):
a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately
151,460 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commerzone Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated
land ad ing approximately 9,561 sq. mtrs on which the said building, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village
Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 2.

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to MBPPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024. accordingly the same has been
classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 30 September 2023,
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.
¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In September 2021, Sundew Properties Limited issued 4,000 Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumalative, Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures of (*Sundew NCD 1") having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 4,000,000,000 (Rupees four thousand million only)
with a coupon rate of 6.1% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment (date of allotment being 28 September 2021 and
end of first full quarter being 31 December 2021), with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 28 June 2024. The tenure of the said NCD is from
deemed date of allotment i.e. 28 September 2021, till scheduled redemption date i.e. 28 June 2024.

This NCD was listed on BSE Limited on 1 October 2021,

Security terms:
NCD 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders) (as further detailed in security
documents):

1. First ranking exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage over identified immovable properties (as identified below); First ranking sole and exclusive
security interest by way of hypothecation over

(a) the current & future movable assets owned by the Sundew and receivables pertaining to identified immovable properties Building 20 with 709,165 square feet carpet
area (save and except 11,974 square feet carpet area of cafeteria and 1,520 square feet carpet area of SEZ office), Building 12B (unit no 1301 (22,069 square feet carpet
area), unit no 1302 (16,296 square feet carpet area), unit no 1401 (37,050 square feet carpet area) Part Project Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad Buildings

(b) the escrow account and the subscription account and all amounts standing to the credit of, or acerued or accruing on escrow account and the subscription account.

2. NCD are backed by guarantee provided by Mindspace REIT.
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Redemption terms:

a) NCD 1 are redeemable by way of bullet payment on 28 June 2024.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a vear (starting from 31 December, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded afler any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Sundew shall issue mandatory redemption notice within 2 business days and no later than than 30 (thirty)
Business Days from issuance of mandatory redemption notice (unless instructed otherwise by debenture trustee), redeem in full (or as the case may be, in part) all the
Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the mandatory redemption amount in respect of each Debenture.

In February 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures (“NCD Series 3”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 5,000,000,000 (Rupees five thousand million only)
with a coupon rate of 6.35% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day ,be prorated on an
actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose
name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The Issuer hereby aknowledges and agrees that there shall be no moratorium period for
the payment of Coupon. The first Coupon payment Date is 31 March 2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 31 December 2024, The
tenure of the said NCD Series 3 is 35 months from 1 February 2022, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 3 was listed on BSE Limited on February 04, 2022

Security terms

NCD Series 3 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the carpet area of approximately 5,52,974 Sq. Ft.(save and except entire 2nd floor
admeasuring 11,883 Sq. Ft. carpet area in building no. 2) (the building no. 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces,
in Building 2 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Airoli West in appurtenant to Building 2 and all erections. The Building 2 is situated on a
portion of the Mortgage Land admeasuring 8.04 Hectares, which portion is notified as a Special Economic Zone & first and exclusive charge being registered by way of
simple mortgage on the identified units with aggregating to carpet area of approximately 4,61,527 Sq. F. (identified units of building no. 3 ) situated on the Mortgage
land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to
Building 3 and all erections (“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 3 as further detailed in transaction documents

A first ranking pari passu charge by way of a simple mortgage over the Mortgaged Land as further detailed in transaction documents

b} A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common arca maintenance
charges payable to GIGAPLEX with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

) Corporate guacintee executed by Gigaplex.

Redemption termis:

) NCD Serizs 3 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 35 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 31 December, 2024

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢} The Counon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Couper: shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer 10 redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In June 2022, Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited issued 4,900 senior, redeemable, listed, rated, secured, transferable, rupee denominated, non-convertible bonds
(“Non Convertable Bonds™) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 4,900,000,000 (Rupees four thousand nine hundred
million only) wit® a coupon rate linked to 3 month Government of India T-Bill plus spread of 203 bps payable quarterly, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i.e. 22 June 2027. The tenure of the said non convertible bond is 60 months from deemed date of allotment i.e. 23 June 2022, till scheduled redemption
date i.e. 22, June 2027.

This NCB Series 1 was listed on BSE Limited on June 24, 2022. During the period, principal and interest is paid on 30 June 2023

Security Terins:

[he Non Convertible Bonds are secured by

(1) a first ranking pari passu Security by way of a simple mortgage over the specified land (larger land admeasuring 2,02,740 square meters situated at Kalwa Industrial
Area sub district Thane ) and

(ii) a first ranking exclusive Security over the identified buildings having aggregate carpet area of approximately 10,40,548.98 sq.ft. (approx. 2,67,560.75 sq. ft. in
Building No. 10, approx. 2,35,961.50 sq. fi. in Building no. 11 (part),approx. 2.74,449.71 sq. fi. in Building No. 12, approx. 2,62,577.02 sq. ft. in Building No. 14),
receivables and Account Assets, as specifically defined in the bond trust deed dated June 02, 2022 and as further amended from time to time (“Bond Trust Deed”).

(iii) Corporate guarantee by the REIT pursuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed.

Redemption terms:

Final Redemption Date is the date falling 60 months from the Deemed Date of Allotment (Principal repayment: 1% on 31 Mar 23, 2% on 31 Mar 24, 3% on 31 Mar 25,
4% on 31 Mar 26, 5% on 31 Mar 27 and Balance on Final Redemption Date). The said non convertible bonds are voluntarily redeemable by the company upon the
expiry of the lock-in preseribed under the Applicable Laws as specifically defined in the Bond Trust Deed. Non convertible bond holders have a put option at the end of
54 months from Deemed Date of Allotment as specified in the Bond Trust Deed.

On and from the occurrence of a Rating Downgrade Event/ Rating upgrade Event, the Spread shall stand increased/ decreased by 0.25% per annum over and above the
immediately preceding Coupon as on the date of the occurrence of such Rating Downgrade/ Upgrade Event




21 B(vii) In July 2022, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
of face value of INR 1,000,000 (Indian Rupees One Million) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Million
Only) with a coupon rate of 7.95% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on
an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder
whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 Sept 2022, with last coupon payment on the
scheduled redemption date i.e. 27 July 2027. The tenure of the said NCD Series 4 is 60 months.

This NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limited on July 29, 2022
Security terms
NCD Series 4 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq ft in building 12 D (identified vnits of
building) of Madhapur, Hyderabad along with the common areas, usage and access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Building 12D as mentioned in the trust
deet, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 17414.77 square metres (equivalent to 4.30 acres), forming part of a portion of land
admeasuring 14.02 hectares equivalent to 34.64 acres or thereabout declared as ‘Special Economic Zone’ land from and out of the larger piece of land bearing Survey
no. 64(part), lying, being and situated at Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to Sundew with respect (o the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew Properties Limited.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 4 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 60 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 27 July, 2027.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September 2022} until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

21 B(viii) On 15 March 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 55.000 (fifty five thousand) Green Debt Securities in the form of listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative,
taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 17) having nominal value of Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One lakh only) each.
amounting to Rs. 5,500,000,000 (Rupees Five thousand five hundred million only) with a coupon rate of 8.02% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first
quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 15 March 2023, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 13 April 2026. The tenure of the said Mindspace
REIT Green Borg | is 3 year and 30 days from 15 March 2023, being date of allotment. The date of payment of first coupon is 31 March 23.

Mindspace REIT <ireen Bond 1 was listed on BSE Limited on 16 March 2023,

Security terms:

Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders) as more
particularly described in the transaction documents, summarized as follows:

a} First an.d exclusive charge registered by way of equitable mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 1.067
million sguure feet or thereabouts in buildings no. 5B and 9 of Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx. 245,977 sq. ft. in building no. 5B and approx. 821,717
building no. ) weether with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in (i) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 7,169.50 square metres
{=quivalent to 17717 acres) on which Building 5B is situated, and (i) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 16,871.82 square metres (equivalent
1o 4.17 acres) on which Building 9 is situated.

©) A charge on e 2scrow account in which receivables of \he Mortgaged Properties shall be payable to Intime Properties Limited.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Intime Properties Limited.

Redemption terms:

a) Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 years and 30 days from the date of allotment (date of allotment being 15
March 2023 and date of redemption being 13 April 2026).

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2023) until the scheduled redemption date and on the scheduled
redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

21 B(ix) In June 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated. secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of
face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Million
Only) with a coupon rate of 7.75% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to
day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the
Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 June 2023, with last
coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 30 June 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 6 1s 3 year and 29 days.

This NCD Series 6 was listed on BSE Limited on June 06, 2023,
Security terms

NCD Series 6 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):
a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of a registered simple mortgage on identified units in buildings 6, 7 and § of Commerzone Yerwada adding to
a cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.7msf across these 3 buildings at Commerzone Yerwada, Pune along with the common areas, usage and access rights
appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Buildings 6, 7 and 8 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 26,162
square metres , forming part of a portion of land larger land admeasuring 1,03,919 square metres (after deducting 21 square metres for road from total extent of 1,03,940
square metres) at Village Yerwada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the limits of Pune Municipal Corporation.
b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any cosrTOl] aintenance
. charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties. 6“ NG&
oy rporate guarantee executed by Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited. (1




21 B(x)

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 6 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 29 days from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2023.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June 2023) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In September 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand
Million Only) with a coupon rate of 8.03% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from
day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to
the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment Date is 30 September 2023, with
last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 10 December 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 7 is 3 years and 3 months

This NCD Series 7 was listed on BSE Limited on September 13, 2023.

Security terms

NCD Series 7 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 of Mindspace Madhapur adding to a
cumulative carpet arca of approximately 0.73 msf across these 3 buildings in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 36,258 square metres, being and situated at Mindspace Madhapur, Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga
Reddy District, Hyderabad,

bj first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a hypothecation over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the credit of or
accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction documents.

¢} Corporate guarantee executed by KRIT.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 7 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 3 months from the date of allotment i.e. 11 September 2023.

b) Inierest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September 2023) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment falling
on the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

Refer Note 49 for Ratio disclosure

212 Other nor-current financial liabilities

23

24

25

Particulars As at As al
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Security deposits 3,803 3,445
Retention imoney payable
- due to micro and small enterprises 63 31
- others 187 11

Capital creditors
- Due to micro and small enterprises - -

- Others 15 31
Interest accrued bul not due on debentures - 535
4,068 4,153

Provisions (Non current)

Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

“Provision for employee benefits

- gratuity 31 26
- compensated absences 14 14
Other Provision (Refer Note 42 (7)(c)) 27 27
72 67
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 3,315 2,494
3,315 2,494

Other non-current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

Unearned rent 474 482

474 482




26 _Short term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

Secured:
Loans repayable on demand
- overdraft from banks 2,726 1,219

Unsecured:
- Commercial Paper (Refer note 26(i)) (31 March 2023 : Nil) 4

Current maturities of long-term debt (Secured)
10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, 3,744
principal protected - market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
(“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses, at
amortised cost) (refer Note 21 B(ii))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- 750 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (refer Note 21 B(iii))

- Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- 1,999 1,996
convertible debentures (NCD Series 1) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (Refer Note 21 B(i))

Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumulative, 3,993 -
Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (Sundew
NCD 1) (refer Note 21 B(iv))

- Bonds - Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cummulative, Taxable, - 98
Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds (MBPPL NCB 1) (Refer
note 21 B{vi))

- from banks 3,045 5,357
- from other parties 74 13
- Flexi term loan 24 10

16,355 8,693

26 (i) On 20 December 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only) each, at a discount
0f 7.2% per annum (o the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/1 was Rs. 982,556,000 (Rupees nine hundred eighty two miliion
five lakhs fitty six thousands only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 1000.000,000 (Rupees one thousand mullion only). Discount on Commercial papers is
amortized cver the tenor of the underlying instrument. The commercial papers were listed on BSE and matured and repaid on 20 March 2023.

27

Trade payables

Particulars

As at
30 September 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Trade Pay ables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 87 133
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises * 749 576
836 709
* Refer note 48 for related party disclosure.
28 Other current fi ial liabilities
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Employees dues payable 34 13
Interest accrued but not due on loans from
- banks / financial institutions 61 44
- debenture/bonds 662 3
Interest accrued and due on others 28 21
Security deposits 5,124 5,162
Retention dues payable
- due to micro and small enterprises 164 193
- others 283 250
Unpaid Distributions 0 0
Capital creditors
- Due to micro and small enterprises 447 380
- Others 1,670 1,560
Other liabilities* 44 70
8,517 7,696

* Refer note 48 for related party disclosure,




29

30

31

Provisions (Current)
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits
- gratuity 4 4
- compensated absences 3 3
Provision for compensation - 27
7 34
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Uneamned rent 351 365
Advances received from customers 31 46
Statutory dues 300 308
Other advances 58 54
Other payable* 425 354
1,165 1,127
*This includes Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount.
Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
Provision for income-tax, net of advance iax 116 25
116 25
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Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments

Particulars As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

Contingent liabilities

Claims not acknowledged as debt in respect of

- Income-Tax matters (Refer note 1 below) excluding interest 963 936
- Service-Tax matters (Refer note 2 below) 333 367
- Customs duty matters (Refer note 3 below) 34 34
- Stamp duty 65 65
Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for (Refer| 7,819 5,173
Note 4 below)
Notes:

(a) Gigaplex- An appeal has been filed for A.Y. 2010-11 before CIT(A) against the penalty order raising demand of Rs.3 million and the appeal is pending. Gigaplex has
paid 20% (Rs.1 million) with a request to keep the demand in abeyance. As on September 30, as per Income tax website , there is no demand outstanding. Subsequent
to period end, order of CIT(A) has been received and this penalty has now been deleted.

(b) KRIT - Contingent liability of Rs. 933 million relate to AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19 for which it has filed appeals before CIT(A) against orders under section 143(3)
/ 143(3) read with section 153A of the Act contesting the disallowance of deduction under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961. KRIT is hopeful of a favourable
outcome for these Assessment Years. In case of unfavourable decisions in appeal for AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19, the tax would be payable under normal tax and
hence, MAT credit currently available with KRIT will no longer be available. As a result, in addition to above contingent liability, KRIT would require to pay additional
tax of Rs. 326 million w.r.t. AY 2019-20 and AY 2020-21 (These years are not under litigation) because during these years KRIT has utilised the MAT credit availed
during AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19.The disallowance of deduction under section 80IA for AYs 2012-13 to 2018-19 by the Income Tax department was based on the
order for earlier AY 2011-12 wherein similar disallowance was made. KRIT had challenged the said order of AY 2011-12 before the ITAT. The Hon’ble ITAT vide its
order dated 06.05.2021 allowed the appeal in favour of KRIT by quashing the disallowance made by the income-tax authority. The Income Tax department has further
filed an appeal before the High Court against the said order for AY 2011-12 of the Hon ble ITAT.

(c) Avacado- Contingent liability of Rs, 30,55 million relates to AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17. For AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17, the Company had filed appeals
against order under section 143(3) read with 153A of the Income Tax Act,1961 on account of disallowances u/s 14A and w's 80IA which were disposed-off in favour of
the Company in earlier year. The department has filed an appeal before the Hon'ble High Court against the same

SPVs As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

MBPPL 92 92
Sundew 2 1
Intime 42 57
KRIT 189 209
Avacado 8 8

333 367

MBPPL : The SPV has received show cause and demand notices for inclusion in taxable value amounts received as reimbursement of electricity and allied charges and
demand service tax there on of Rs. 92 million excluding applicable interest and penalty. SPV has filled appropriate replies to the show cause and demand notices.

Sundew : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.2 Million and Demand for Interest and Penalty on account of wrong
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs.0 million . SPV has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending.

Intime : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.21 million and Demand for Service tax on electricity and water and irregular
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs.21 million. SPV has filed appeals with CESTAT and the matter is pending adjudication.

KRIT : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.96 million and Demand for Service tax on electricity and water and irregular
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs.93 million. SPV has filed appeals with CESTAT and the matter is pending adjudication.




a)

b)

a)

Avacado : (a) The SPV has received an order dated 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appeals), confirming the service tax demand of Rs. 7 million
(excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants during the period April 2008 to March 2011, It has
filed an Appeal before the Customs, Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal. The matter is pending adjudication.

(b) For the period April 2011 to September 2011, Avacado had received a Show Cause cum Demand Notice dated 22 October 2012 alleging non-payment of service tax
of Rs. 1 million (excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants. Avacado had filed its detailed reply
on 24 December 2012. No further correspondence has been received in this case.

For both the above matters,Avacado had filed applications in Form SVLDRS-1 under the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019, Avacado had
received SVLDRS-3 with service tax demand in respect of above matters. Avacado had not accepted the demand and therefore the matter remains under dispute.

Customs duty demand at the time of debonding of assets from the Software Technology Parks of India scheme ( STPI ) for Intime Rs. 16 million and KRIT Rs. 9

million.
Future Cash outflow in respect of above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgement / decision pending with relevant authorities.

KRIT - Bank guarantees to Deputy Commissioner of Customs, Export Promotion Division for Rs.9 million

The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows:

SPVs As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

MBPPL 749 891
Gigaplex 774 770
Sundew 429 438
KRC Infra 1,855 1,513
Horizonview 43 328
KRIT 3,736 988
Avacado ) 89 141
Intime 144 104

7,819 5,173
Avacado

A Suit has been filed in the year 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadia (Plaintiff) against Ivory Properties and Hotels Private Limited (Ivory) & Others which includes Avacado
as one of the Defendants inter alia in respect of the land and the 'Paradigm' Industrial Park building of Avacado. The Plaintiff has prayed against Avacado and the said
Ivory restraining them from carrying out further construction or any other activity on the land (on which the building Paradigm is constructed), demolition and removal
of the structures on the said land, appointment of a Court Receiver in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agreements entered into by
Avacado with Ivory and the Plaintiff as voidable and having been avoided and rescinded by the Plaintiff and to be delivered up and cancelled, restraining from
alienating, encumbering or parting with possession of structures and restraining from dealing with, creating fresh leases / licenses or renewing lease / license in respect
of the said Paradigm building and from receiving or recovering any rent / license fee / compensation in respect of the said leases / licenses, depositing all the rents in the
Court, etc. The Court has not granted any ad-interim relief to the Plaintiff. Avacado has filed its reply to the said Suit denying the allegations and praying that no interim
relief be granted to the Plaintiff. The notice of motion for interim relief and the Suit are pending for the final hearing before the High Court.

Based on an advice obtained from an independent legal counsel, the management is confident that Avacado will be able to suitably defend and the impact, if any, on the
Ind AS financial statements can be determined on disposal of the above Petition and accordingly, Ind AS Financial statements of Avacado have been prepared on a
going concern basis. Further, the Plaintiff, through his advocates & solicitors, had addressed letter dated 13 February 2020 including to Mindspace REIT, the Manager,
the Trustee, the Sponsors, Avacado, Mr. Ravi C. Raheja, Mr. Neel C. Raheja, Mr. Chandru L. Raheja, Ivory Properties and K Raheja Corp Pvt.Ltd., expressing his
objection to the proposed Offer and any actions concerning the building Paradigm located at Mindspace Malad project. The allegations and averments made by the
Plaintiff have been responded and denied by the addressees, through their advocates & solicitors. No further correspondence has been received.

Pursuant to the levy of service tax on renting of immovable properties given for commercial use, retrospectively with effect from 1 June 2007 by the Finance Act, 2010,
some of the lessees to whom Avacado has let out its premises, have based on a legal advice, challenged the said levy and, inter-alia, its retrospective application and
withheld payment of service tax to Avacado, based on certain judicial pronouncements and stay orders granted by appropriate High Courts from time to time. Further in
this regard the Hon’ble Supreme Court has passed an interim order dated 14th October, 2011 in Civil appeal nos. 8390, 8391-8393 of 2011 and in compliance of which,
such lessees have deposited with appropriate authority in 3 instalments, 50% of the amount such service tax not so paid by them upto 30 September 2011 and have
furnished surety for the balance 50% of the amount of service tax and which amount has also been deposited by them with the authorities. Further as per Hon'ble
Supreme Court’s Order dated 5th April 2018 in Civil Appeal No. (s) 4487/2010, the matter is deferred until disposal of the issues pending before the nine judges Bench
in Mineral Area Development Authority and others.

In view of the above and subjeet to the final orders being passed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in the aforesaid appeals, there may be a contingent liability on Avacado
in respect of interest payable on account of the delayed payment of service tax, which amount would be recoverable from the respective lessees by Avacado.

KRC Infra
In respect of KRC Infra's project at Village Kharadi, Pune, a special civil suit is filed by Ashok Phulchand Bhandari against Balasaheb Laxman Shivale and 29 others in
respect of inter alia an undivided share admeasuring 44.15 Ares out of the land bearing S. No 65 Hissa No. 3 for declaration, specific performance, injunction and other
reliefs. Neither Gera Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited is a party to the aforementioned suit and neither of them have
been joined as parties to the civil suit or Gera Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited have filed any intervention
application. There are no orders passed in the matter affecting the suit lands or the development thereof or restraining the transfer or development of the aforesaid land
in any manner whatsoever. The matter is currently pending.




b)

c)

Saraswatibai Malhari Gaikwad (deceased) (“Plaintiff”) through her heir Sangita Shivaji Kate through her constituted attorney Mr. Amit Jeevan Pathare has filed special
civil suit no. 2040 of 2021 (2021 Suit”) against Yashwant Punaji Pathare & 65 others (“Defendants”) before the Civil Judge, Senior Division, Pune (“Court™) seeking
inter alia preliminary decree of partition for 1/5th undivided share of the Plaintiff in the suit lands including inter alia portion of land bearing Survey No. 65/3 on which
Gera Commerzone Kharadi is situated, cancellation of sale deeds, declaration, permanent injunction and several other reliefs. KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private
Limited is not a party to the 2021 Suit and further, no summons from the Court have been received by KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited till date. Gera
Developments Private Limited and Gera Resorts Private Limited i.e. Defendant No. 15 & 16 in the said suit have filed their written statement and an Application for
rejection of plaint on the grounds mentioned therein. The matter is currently pending. Gera Developments Private Limited (“Gera Developments™) and Gera Resorts
Private Limited (“Gera Resorts”), two of the defendants in the matter have filed an application for rejection of plaint under Order VII Rule 11 of Code of Civil
Procedure, which application was rejected by the Court by way of an order passed on May, 05, 2022. Thereafter, on June 22, 2022 Gera Developments and Gera
Resorts have filed a written statement in the matter. On June 22, 2022 the Plaintiff has filed an application under section 151 of Code of Civil Procedure seeking
injunction against certain Defendants from creating third party rights by way of sale, not to carry out construction or development activities. On June 27, 2022, the
defendants, Gera Developments and Gera Resorts filed their reply to the temporary injunction application. An application to recall the order dated May 5, 2022 was filed
by defendants 1 to 15. The matter was heard on July 16, 2022, wherein the Court rejected the application filed by the defendants 1 and 15. On August 29, 2022 KRC
Infra filed an application for intervention as third party for being impleaded in the suit. The hearing was concluded on September 27, 2022 on the intervention
application and the matter has been posted to October 01, 2022 for passing of an order on the Application for intervention filed by KRC Infra. On October 1, 2022 the
matter was further adjourned to October 6, 2022 and further to October 7, 2022. On October 7, 2022 additional arguments were advanced on the intervention
application and the matter has been posted for order on the intervention application. By an order dated November 18, 2022, the Court allowed the intervention
application filed by KRC Infra and directed the Plaintiff to implead the intervener i.e. KRC Infra as Defendant No. 66 in the suit within one month of the order. On
December 3, 2022 the Plaintiff filed applications for amendment of the plaint and for injunction. On December 13, 2022, KRC Infra filed its say to the application for
amendment. By an order dated December 13, 2022, the Court allowed the application of the Plaintiff to amend the plaint in Exhibit 5. Further, by the said Order the
Court has directed the Plaintiff to serve the amended compilation upon KRC Infra and KRC Infra to file its written statement along with its say to the application for
temporary injunction filed by the Plaintiff. The matter was posted to January 5, 2023 for compliance. On January 5, 2023, Defendant n0.66 (i.e., KRC Infrastructure
and Project Private Limited) has filed on record the written Statement and say to Application for Temporary Injunction along with affidavit in support of Say, and
Application for production of documents along with List of documents. Thereafter, Defendant no. 1 to 14 filed two applications :

— (1) an Application seeking an adjournment to file Additional Written Statement; and, (2) an Application seeking direction from the Hon'ble Court to the Plaintiff to
provide documents referred to in the amended plaint filed by the Plaintiff, to the said Defendants and the matter was posted to January 11, 2023, for arguments on
behalf of the Plaintiff and the Defendant no.66 on the Application for Temporary Injunction filed at Exhibit 5. On January 11, 2023, the Plaintiff advanced oral
arguments before the Court on the application for temporary injunction. Thereafier, the Court adjourned the matter and the same was posted to January 24, 2023, for
arguments on behalf of Defendant no.66 on the application for temporary injunction. On January 24, 2023, Defendant No. 66 filed an application for production of
documents along with a separate list of documents and filed photographs on record and the matter was adjourned to February 07, 2023 for arguments on behalf of
Defendant no.66 on the application for temporary injunction. On February 07, 2023 and February 21, 2023 the Defendant No. 66 advanced arguments before the Court
on the Application for injunction. The matter was further posted to March 2, 2023 for concluding the arguments on Application for injunction by the Plaintiff. The
Plaintiff concluded her arguments in reply to the arguments made by Defendant no.66. Defendant No. 66 filed the written notes of arguments. The Plaintiff has filed
copy of the Order dated January 13, 2023, thereby granting status quo to the order dated December 05, 2022, passed in RTS Appeal No. 429 of 2022 rejecting the
Appeal on merits till the final disposal of the Appeal RTS/2/A/1554/2022 filed before the Hon'ble Additional Collector, Pune. Thereafter the captioned matter has been
adjourned to March 15, 2023, for filing of written arguments, if any, by the Plaintiff and other Defendants. On March 15, 2023 the matter was adjourned till March 23,
2023. On March 23, 2023 Defendant Nos. 62 and 63 filed an application for amendment of the WS filed by them and the Plaintiff has filed its say to the said
application. Thereafter, the Plaintiff and the Defendant Nos. 62 and 63 argued on the aforesaid application and the Hon’ble Court was pleased to allow the aforesaid
amendment application. The Defendant Nos. 16, 17, 18, 19, 51, 52 and 53 filed their written notes of arguments and the Defendant No. 16 and 17 have filed their
written notes of arguments. The 2021 Suit matter has been adjourned till July 10, 2023 for passing order on Application for injunction filed by the Plaintiff. On July 19,
2023, the Court partly allowed the Application for injunction, restraining Defendant | and 2 from alienating and creating third party rights in any manner over suit
properties 1 (a), 1 (b) and 1 (f) till disposal of the suit. On September 11, 2023 the Advocate for the Plaintiff filed an application for amendment of the suit, inter alia,
seeking (a) rectification of boundaries in respect of suit property 1(e) of Defendant No. 66 i.e. KRC Infra (viz. Survey No. 65/3), (b) addition/amendment in para No. 8
and 12 stating that Defendant No. 1 to 19, 51 to 54, 63 to 67 and other defendants have refused for partition and undivided share of the Plaintiff, Thereafier, pursuant to
Defendants No. | to 14 filing their say and matter has been adjourned to November 3, 2023 for say of other Defendants. Further, A notice of lis pendens dated February
1, 2022 has been registered at the office of Sub Registrar, Haveli no. 11, Pune. The matter is currently pending

Saraswati Malhari Gaikwad (deceased) through her heir (“Appellant™) filed an RTS Appeal on June 2, 2022, before the Sub Divisional Officer, Haveli, Pune (“SDO™)
against Gera Resorts Private Limited through Mr. Nilesh Dave and Mr. Ashish Jangda (“Respondents”™) seeking quashing and setting aside of the order passed on May
26, 2022 by the Circle Officer, Kalas in respect of Mutation Entry No. 27115 (“Impugned Order™) recording the name of Respondents on the revenue records in
pursuance of the duly registered Deed of Confirmation dated March 10, 2021 executed between Gera Developments Pvt Ltd and Gera Resorts Pvt Ltd in respect of
Survey No. 65 Hissa No. 3, Village Kharadi, Taluka Haveli, District Pune. The Appellant has filed an application for stay to the Impugned Order passed by the Circle
Officer, Kalas. On June 17, 2022 the Sub Division Officer, Haveli granted a stay on the Impugned Order till the next date of hearing i.e. November 6, 2023. By an order
dated December 05, 2022, the SDO has rejected the said RTS Appeal on merit and subject to the final order /outcome of the 2021 Suit.

MBPPL




a)

Pursuant to the demerger and vesting of the Commerzone Undertaking of K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd. (KRCPL), in MBPPL, MBPPL is the owner to the extent of 88.16 %
undivided right title and interest in the land bearing S. No 144, 145 Yerawada, Pune which is comprised in the said Undertaking. “Shrimant Chhatrapati Udayan Raje
Bhosale (“the Plaintiff”) has filed a Special Civil Suit bearing No.133 of 2009 in the Court of Civil Judge, Senior Division Pune against the erstwhile land Owner Shri
Mukund Bhavan Trust (who had entrusted development rights to MBPPL) and the State of Maharashtra, claiming to be the owner of the said land. The Hon’ble Court
was pleased to reject the Application for amendment of plaint filed by the Plaintiff and allow the Third Party Applications on 14.11.2016. The Plaintiff has filed two writ
petitions bearing Nos. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 in the Bombay High Court challenging the aforesaid orders passed on 14.11.2016. The matter was transferred to
another Court for administrative reasons and adjourned on several occasions for compliance of the order by the Plaintiff. On 5th March 2018 the Advocate for the
Plaintiff filed a purshis on record stating that since he does not have any instructions in the matter from the Plaintiff, the Vakalatnama is being withdrawn by him and
the matter was posted on 20th March 2018. On 20th March 2018 the Hon’ble Court was pleased to adjourn the matter till 22nd June 2018 since the Advocate for the
Plaintiff had withdrawn the Vakalatnama and the Plaintiff was not represented by any Advocate. Writ Petition Nos. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 filed in the Hon ble
Bombay High Court challenging the orders dated 14th November 2016 by Shrimant Chatrapati Udayanraje Bhosale against Shri. Mukund Bhavan Trust and others
came up for hearing on 28 November 2017 wherein the Advocate for the Petitioner undertook to serve the copy of the petition on the Respondent No. 2 i.e. State of
Maharashtra and the Hon’ble High Court was pleased to adjourn the same till 16.01.2018, 26.02.2018, 22.06.2018. On 22.06.2018 the Advocate for the Defendant No.
1 filed a purshis stating that the Defendant No. 1 (a) expired matter was further adjourned till 24.10.18, 26.11.18, 21.12.18, 01.02.2019, 25.03.2019 and 15.04.2019,
18.06.2019, 27.08.2019, 19.09.2019. On 19.09.2019 the matter has been stayed by the Hon’ble Court and further posted on 11.11.2019 for compliance of the order
dated 14.11.2016 by the Plaintiff. The matter has been stayed under Sec 10 of Code of Civil Procedure. Next date 16.09.23 for steps. Both the Writ Petitions were
posted on 21.09.18, 11.10.18, 22.10.18 and further posted on 10.06.19 for Admission. The matters came on board on 20.06.2019, 14.11.2019, 15.01.2019 and
21.02.2019. As per the CMIS Writ Petition No. 4415/2017 was last posted on 27.03.2020 and is yet not listed. As per the CMIS Writ Petition No. 4268/2017 was last
posted on 27.03.2020 and thereafter on 23.07.20 for Admission and is yet not listed. In the management’s view, as per legal advice, considering the matter and the
facts, no provision for any loss / liability is presently required to be made.




b)

c)

a)

b)

MBPPL is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. MBPPL’s management does not reasonably expect that
these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on MBPPL’s results of operations or financial condition.

MBPPL received a communication (alleged reminder) from Pune Municipal Corporation (PMC) demanding an amount of Rs.157 million allegedly due from MBPPL
based on objections by internal audit report of Pune Municipal Corporation. MBPPL, has submitted a letter denying all allegation of PMC, as MBPPL has not been
served with any document referred to the said PMC letter. Subsequently MBPPL addressed one more communication stating that MBPPL would be in a position to
submit their reply upon receipt of the details of amount demanded as per their reply submitted which states that if any principal outstanding is due/recoverable, MBPPL
agrees to make the said payment and sought detailed clarification on the interest amount. By letter dated 20.07.2019 to MBPPL, PMC provided the copy of the audit
report to MBPPL and requested MBPPL to provide its clarifications in respect of objectionable issues and furnish the challans in lieu of payment of the recoverable
amount. By letter dated 17.08.2021 to the architect firm and another, PMC stated that it has not received any clarifications and provided the challans of amounts by
assessing interest thereon and required submission of challan/receipt towards payment of an amount of ¥ 183.60 million recoverable against all objectionable issues. By
its reply letter dated 06.09.2021 to PMC, MBPPL has again reiterated that the earlier PMC letter dated 04.02.2019 and the PMC letter dated 17.08.2021 are addressed to
the wrong persons and informed PMC of the non-receipt of relevant information and documents from PMC as requested by MBPPL earlier. By letter dated 11.10.2021
to PMC, MBPPL replied stating that the impugned challans, demands and notice are illegal, null and void and ultra vires; and likewise the act of issuing the letter dated
17.08.2021 is ultra vires and without the authority of law and called upon PMC to withdraw the impugned challans and letter forthwith. By the said letter MBPPL
further stated that if the challans and letter is not withdrawn and any further action is initiated in that event the letter dated 11.10.2021 may be treated as a notice under
section 487 of The Maharashtra Municipal Corporations Act, 1949 and under section 159 of The Maharashtra Regional and Town Planning Act, 1966. Further, without
prejudice to the contentions raised in the reply and without admitting any liability to pay the amount as per the impugned challans, MBPPL has submitted that, in order
to resolve the controversy, MBPPL is willing to offer to pay in full and final settlement on all accounts of all demands raised in the said challans, a lumpsum one-time
amount of ¥ 26.64 million without any liability for interest thereon or for any other payments relating to the subject and to provide an opportunity of hearing and
furnishing clarifications, if required by PMC. Subsequently, by letter dated March 10, 2022, PMC informed MBPPL that it has not accepted the cheque issued by
MBPPL vide its letter dated January 25, 2022 and requested MBPPL to issue demand draft for the amount as per the Challans and make the payment to PMC at the
earliest.

On April 7, 2022 MBPPL submitted a reply/ letter to PMC enclosing a demand draft as desired by the PMC, for an amount of ¥ 26.64 million towards the payment as
set out in MBPPL's earlier communications. Vide letter dated July 11, 2022 PMC returned MBPPL's demand draft while demanding entire demanded payment.
MBPPL vide its letter dated July 22, 2022 read with MBPPL letter dated July 21, 2022 remitted the entire demanded payment of Rs.10,13,57,239/- under protest.
MBPPL on July 28, 2022 also paid an amount of Rs.60,93,225/- being Challan Late Fees and recorded this payment under MBPPL letter dated August 8, 2022.MBPPL
(“Petitioner™) has filed writ petition on November 14, 2022 in the Bombay High Court (“Court”) against Pune Municipal Corporation and others (“Respondents™) inter
alia, seeking to impugn and set aside the Demand Notice dated January 5, 2022 enclosing challans for certain amounts allegedly due and payable by the Petitioner
(*Impugned Demand Notice™) and for refund of the amount of ¥ 107.45 million paid by the Petitioner under protest to the Respondents towards the Impugned Demand
Notice. The matter is currently pending for admission.

Intime, Sundew and KRIT

In accordance with the Scheme of arrangement which was approved by Hon’ble Andhra Pradesh High Court on 23 March 2007, the Industrial Park 1l and I1I
undertakings of K.Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (formerly known as K.Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Private Limited) ("KRIT", "JV Company") have been
demerged and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date i.e. 01 September 2006.

Intime and Sundew had acquired the land at Madhapur, Hyderabad as part of the demerger scheme from KRIT. The said land is in licu of the employment opportunities
to be generated by KRIT and others.

The liability, if any, arising due to the obligation to create the job opportunities for the entire larger land of which the above property is a part, continues to be retained by
KRIT as at 30 September 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("TSIIC") has returned the original Bank Guarantees to KRIT and
also confirmed to the bank that TSIIC will not claim any amount from the bank under the Bank Guarantees and the bank is relieved of its obligation. Hence, no liability
is recognised towards the price of the plot of land.

An unconditional obligation to pay amounts due to Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC") in respect of APIIC's claims of losses due to
any difference in values pertaining to sale transactions of the project undertaken by KRIT. Losses incurred by the Government/TSIIC in its JV Company, if any, will be
paid in full by K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd and it has furnished to the JV Company in writing agreeing and admitting liability to make such payment to Government/TSIIC.
The shareholding pattern of the Government/TSIIC in the JV Company and the Company will not change as a result of conversion from Private to Public, the
Government / TSIIC equity of 11% will remain the same in the Company and all the demerged companies and further in future, Government / TSIIC will not be asked
to infuse further cash to maintain its 11% stake.

Gigaplex

Regular Civil Suit had been filed before the Hon. Civil Judge (J.D) Vashi at Central Business District by an Education Society ("the Plaintiff") who is claiming rights in
existing school structure, claiming its area as 500 square meters and its existence since more than 30 years, secking an injunction not to dispossess him. Gigaplex has
filed its reply opposing the Plaintiff’s prayers. After hearing the parties, the Hon’ble Judge at the Vashi Court had rejected the Plaintiff’s Injunction Application by
Order dated 20.08.18 (Order). Thereafter the Plaintiff has filed an appeal in Thane District Court. The Plaintiff’s Appeal filed in Thane District Court is still pending,
it’s next date is 08.11.23 for Arguments in Appellant's Applications for injunction and status quo before relevant court in Belapur. In management view, the estimate of
liability arising out of the same is remote, no provision has been taken.

KRIT

A Writ petition has been filed against the Company in the High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad with respect to specific use of the land
admeasuring 4,500 square yards, earmarked as plot 18. Pursuant to it, the Court has passed an Order for no construction activity on the said plot of land until further
orders of the Court. KRIT has filed its reply and also sought expeditious hearing. The matter is pending for disposal by the High Court. Based on the facts of the case,
the management does not expect any liability and is of the opinion that no provision needs to be made
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Sundew

The Office of the Land Reforms Tribunal Cum Deputy Collector & Special Grade Revenue Divisional Officer, Attapur (“Tribunal”) had, by letter dated 27 August
2009, sought information from Sundew under Section 8(2) of the Andhra Pradesh Land Reforms (Ceiling on Agriculture Holdings) Act, 1973 (“APLRAC”) in respect
of the entire land parcel at Mindspace Madhapur. The Revenue Department of the Government of Andhra Pradesh forwarded a Memo dated 5 September 2009 for
furnishing of certain information to the Government of Andhra Pradesh, including information requested by the letter dated 27 August 2009. Sundew had filed a
detailed response on 30 September 2009 stating that (a) the land was originally granted by the Government of Andhra Pradesh to K Raheja IT Park Hyderabad Limited
(KRIT) which was a joint venture company with Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, (b) the land was vested in Sundew by way of demerger
order of the Andhra Pradesh High Court, (c) the land has been declared as an SEZ and is therefore exempt from the local laws; (d) the land was shown as a non-
agricultural land in the master plan of Hyderabad and is therefore not “land” covered under the APLRAC. The Tribunal issued a final notice to Sundew in January 2012
requesting to submit a declaration for full and correct particulars of the lands held. The matter is currently pending before the Tribunal. Future cash flows in respect of
above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various forums/authorities.

Management and Support fees

Management Fees*

Property Management Fee

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 3% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to operations, maintenance and management of the SPVs, as
applicable to be reduced to the extent of employee cost directly incurred by the SPVs. The fees is charged based on the billing done to the tenants. The fees has been
determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs.

Property Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2023 amounts to Rs. 116 million and 230 million respectively and for the quarter and half
year ended 30 September 2022 amounts to Rs 100 million and Rs 199 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation
of fees paid to the Manager.

Support Services Fee

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 0.5% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to general administration and other support service of the
SPVs, as applicable. The fees has been determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs. The fees is
charged based on the billing done to the tenants.

Support Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2023 amounts to Rs. 22 million and 43 million respectively and for the quarter and half year
ended 30 September 2022 amounts to Rs 19 million and Rs 38 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees
paid to the Manager.

REIT Management Fees

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 21 November 2019, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ 0.5% of REIT Net Distributable Cash Flows
which shall be payable either in cash or in Units or a combination of both, at the discretion of the Investment Manager. The fees has been determined for undertaking
management of the REIT and its investments. The REIT Management fees (including GST) accrued for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2023 amounts to
Rs. 17 million and 34 million respectively and for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2022 amounts to Rs 17 million and Rs 34 million respectively. There
are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Investment Manager.

*Refer Note-48 for related party disclosure
Business Support Services :

REIT SPVs have entered into support services agreements with K. Raheja Corporate Services Private Limited (KRCSPL) (Now K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private
Limited (“KRCREPL”) pursuant to the demerger of the services business from KRCSPL into KRCREPL effective September 1, 2023) under which KRCSPL had
agreed to provide project related support activities to the REIT SPVs. The agreement was further amended during the previous year for reduction in the quarterly fees
payable with effect from 1 April, 2022.
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

45 Financial instruments
A The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as below:

C

D

As at As at

Fluanclal asvets 30 September 2023 31 March 2023

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('"FVTOCI")
Investments in equity instruments 0 0

Amortised cost

Investments - non-current 34 29
Trade receivables 1,042 572
Cash and cash equivalents 3,309 4,062
Other bank balances 2,694 2006
Other financial assets 6,880 5,061
Total assets 13,959 9,930
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 63,937 54,535
Lease Liabilities 134 127
Security deposits 8,927 8,607
Trade payables 836 709
Other financial liabilities (other than Security deposits) 3,658 3,242
Total liabilities 77,492 67,220

The Management considers that the carrying amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value.

. Measurement of fair values

The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
a) recognised and measured at fair value
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below:

Fair value hierarchy
* Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as at 30 September 2023.

Financial instruments
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 September 2023:

Particulars Date of valuation Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value:

FVTOCI financial investments: 9/30/2023 0 - - 0
FVTOCI financial investments: 3/31/2023 0 - B 0

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the period ended 30 September 2023 and year ended 31 March 2023.
Determination of fair values

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date.
ii) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values.

Q
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Segment information

Primary segment information

The primary reportable segment is business segment.

Business Segment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate' and ‘power distribution’, which are determined based on the internal organisation and
management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns. The Board of Directors of the
manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM). CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on
analysis of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below.

Real estate

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets . The
Group has its project/properties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, IT parks and commercial
assets including incidental activities.

Power distribution

The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power. The
approved SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ.

For the quarter ended 30 September 2023

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 6,110 286 - (103) 6,293
Segment result 3,624 9 (139) - 3,494
Less: Finance cost 118 0 1,035 - 1,153
Add: Interest income / other income 17 1 92 - 110
Profit / (loss) before tax 3,523 10 (1,082) - 2,451
Less: Tax - - 946 - 946
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,523 10 (2,028) - 1,505
For the quarter ended 30 June 2023
Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 5,701 303 - (106) 5,898
Segment result 3,424 5 (139) - 3,290
Less: Finance cost 79 0 987 1,066
Add: Interest income / other income 72 0 47 - 119
Profit / (loss) before tax 3,417 5 (1,079) - 2,343
Less: Tax z & 974 s 974
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,417 5 (2,053) - 1,369
For the quarter ended 30 September 2022
Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 6,647 209 - (67) 6,789
Segment result 3,042 (28) (165) - 2,849
Finance cost 94 - 736 - 830
Interest income / other income 3 1 69 - 73
Profit / (loss) before tax 2,951 27 (832) - 2,092
Tax - - 1,218 - 1,218
Profit / (Loss) after tax 2,951 27 (2,050) - 874
For the half year ended 30 September 2023
Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 11,811 589 - (209) 12,191
Segment result 7,049 14 (278) - 6,785
Less: Finance cost 197 0 2,022 - 2,219
Add: Interest income / other income 89 1 139 - 229
Profit / (loss) before tax 6,941 15 (2,161) - 4,795
Less: Tax SIN I3 - - 1,920 - 1,920
Prot‘t ! (Loss) after tax A %\)/—-\s&‘a\ 6,941 15 (4,081) - 2,875
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For the half year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
distribution elimination

Segment revenue 10,948 397 - (120) 11,225
Segment result 6,584 (54) (278) - 6,252
Less: Finance cost 190 (4) 1,696 - 1,882
Add: Interest income / other income 27 4 71 - 102
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 6,421 (46) (1,903) - 4,472
Less: Exceptional [tems (refer note 51A and 51B) (1,368) - - - (1,368)
Profit / (loss) before tax 5,053 (46) (1,903) - 3,104
Less: Tax - P 2,176 - 2,176
Profit / (Loss) after tax 5,053 (46) (4,079) - 928
For the half year ended 30 September 2022

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 11,283 444 - (131) 11,596
Segment result 6,002 1 (292) - 5,711
I ess: Finance cost 190 - 1,359 - 1,549
Add: Interest income / other income 4 1 113 - 118
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 5816 2 (1,538) - 4,280
Profit / (loss) before tax 5,816 2 (1,538) - 4,280
Tax - - 2,123 - 2,123
Profit / (Loss) after tax 5,816 2 (3,661) - 2,157
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total

distribution elimination

Segment revenue 22,231 841 - (251) 22,821
Segment result 12,586 (53) (570) - 11,963
Less: Finance cost 380 (4) 3,055 3,431
Add: Interest income / other income 31 5 184 - 220
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 12,237 (44) (3,441) - 8,752
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 51A and 51B) (1,368) - - - (1,368)
Profit / (loss) before tax 10,869 (44) (3.441) - 7,384
Tax - - 4,299 - 4,299
Profit / (Loss) after tax 10,869 (44) (7,740) - 3,085
For the half year ended 30 September 2023
Other Information

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment assets 224,195 1,673 9,335 - 235,203
Segment liabilities 12,339 1,495 68,807 - 82,641
Capital expenditure 6,261 7 - - 6,208
Depreciation & amortisation 1,863 45 - - 1,908
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Other Information

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment assets 219,012 1,795 6,424 - 227,231
Segment liabilities 11,526 1,685 58,238 - 71,449
Capital expenditure 7,263 3 - - 7,266
Depreciation & amortisation 3,460 94 - - 3,554

Secondary segment information

Mindspace Group's operations are based in India and therefore the Group has only one geographical segment - India.

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Mindspace Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies have been followed for

segment reporting:

Segment revenue includes income directly attributable to the segment.

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under respective reportable segment.

Revenue and expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable’.

Borrowings and finance cost of the Group which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable'.
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47 Non-controlling interest

As at 30 September 2023 For the Quarter ended
30 September 2023
Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount Asa % of
net assets consolidated total
i Amount
comprehensive
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 144,816 93.8% 1,412
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,677 1.4% 22
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.4% 2,086 1.1% 17
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3,983 3.7% 55
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 152,562 100% 1,505
For the quarter ended
As at 30 June 2023 30 June 2023
Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount Asa % of
net assets consolidated total
) Amount
comprehensive
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 146,250 93.2% 1,275
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,688 1.6% 22
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.4% 2;135. 1.3% 18
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 4,005 3.9% 53
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 154,078 100% 1,368
As at 30 September 2022 F‘;;‘;:]]%';?;:rr;n;w
Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of
net assets consolidated total
Amount
comprehensive
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.8% 152,627 90.0% 787
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,703 2.9% 25
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.6% 2,591 1.6% 14
Sundew Properties Limited 2.5% 4,046 5.5% 48
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 160,967 100% 874
As at 30 September 2023 For the half year ended
30 September 2023
Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of Amount
net assets consolidated total
comprehensive
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 144,816 91.2% 2,687
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,677 2.3% 44
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.4% 2,086 1.8% 35
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3,983 4.7% 108
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 152,562 100% 2,875




Name of the entity

As at 31 March 2023

For the half year ended

31 March 2023

Net assets

Share in total comprehensive income

As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of
net assets consolidated total
; Amount
comprehensive
income
Parent 94.9% 147,827 93.6% 863
Mindspace Business Parks REIT
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,688 5.7% 53
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.5% 2,271 (9.7%) (89)
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3,996 10.3% 95
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 155,782 100% 922
As at 30 September 2022 For the half year ended
30 September 2022
Name of the entity Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount Asa % of
net assets consolidated total
& Amount
comprehensive
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.8% 152,627 91.2% 1,967
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,703 2.3% 50
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.6% 2,591 1.8% 39
Sundew Properties Limited 2.5% 4,046 4.7% 101
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 160,967 100% 2,157
As at 31 March 2023 For the year ended
31 March 2023
Name of the enuity Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of
net assets consolidated total
comprehensive il
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 147,827 91.9% 2,830
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,688 3.3% 103
K. Raheja I'T Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.5% 2,271 (1.6%) (49)
Sundew Properties Limited 2.5% 3,996 6.4% 196
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 155,782 100% 3,079
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

48 Related party disclosures

A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 30 September 2023 (Refer Note 1)

SI. No.|Particulars Name of Entities Promoters/Partners® Directors
Ms. Deepa Rath
1 Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited Axis Bank Limited** Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dahiva
Mr. Ganesh Sankaran
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja w.ef
July 7, 2023
Mr. Neel C. Raheja wee.f
July 7, 2023
Mr. Deepak Ghaisas w.e.f.
’ . July 11, 2023
2 Manager K Raheja Corp hnycsllncnl Managers Private Limited (formerly m: E:z: g :::g: Mr. Bobby Parikh we.f.
known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)*** z i July 11, 2023
Ms. Manisha Girotra w.e.f.
July 11, 2023
Mr. Manish Kejriwal w.e.f.
July 11, 2023
Mr. Vinod Rohira
w.e.f September 1, 2023
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
3 Anbee Constructions LLP Mr. Ch“"f!m L. R“,heja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
. Ms. Sumati Raheja
Sponsors g
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
- Mr. Neel C. Raheja
4 Cape Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja i
5 Mr. Chandru L. Raheja - -
[ Mr. Ravi C. Raheja - -
7 Mr. Neel C. Raheja - -
8 Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja - -
9 Ms. Sumati Raheja - -
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
10 Capstan Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
11 Sponsors Group Casa Maria Properties LLP mlr— :4:::];“3? hizjaf:]cja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja .
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
12 Raghukool Estate Developement LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
13 Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja e
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with Neel C. Raheja
14 Sponsors Group K. Raheja Corp Pvi. Lid. Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with Ramesh Valecha
Mirs. Jyoti C. Raheja Ramesh Ranganthan
Sunil Hingorani
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP
Capstan Trading LLP
Casa Maria Properties LLP
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Ramesh M. Valecha




Sponsors Group

Ivory Property Trust

Chandru L. Raheja

Jyoti C. Raheja

Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Lid
Rawvi C. Raheja

Meel C. Raheja

(all are trustees)

Genext Hardware & Parks Pvi. Lid.

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L.. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Jyoti C. Raheja,
on behalf of the beneficiaries of Ivory Property
Trust.

Ravi C. Raheja
Neel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan

Names of SPVs/subsidiaries

. Avacado Properties and Trading (India)
Private Limited

. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

. Horizonview Properties Private Limited

KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private

Limited

Intime Properties Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.

B b

.

o~ >

Board of Directors and Key
Managerial  Personnel of the
Manager (K Raheja  Corp
Investment  Managers  Private
Limited)***

Board of Directors

Mr. Deepak Ghaisas (Independent Member)

Ms. Manisha Girotra (Independent Member)

Mr. Bobby Parikh (Independent Member)

Mr. Manish Kejriwal (Independent Member)

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja (Non Executive Non Independent Member)
Mr. Neel C. Raheja (Non Executive Non Independent Member)
Mr. Vinod Rohira w.e.f. September 1, 2023 (Non Executive Non
Independent Member)

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Ramesh Nair (Chiel Executive Officer) w.e.f September 1,
2023

Mr. Vinod Rohira (Chief Executive Officer) ull August 31, 2023
Ms. Preeti Chheda (Chief Financial Officer)

Entities controlled/jointly
controlled by members of
Governing Board/Key Managerial
Personnel of the manager

19

Brookfields Agro & Development Private Limited

Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited

Immense Properties Private Limited

Novel Properties Private Limited

Pact Real Estate Private Limited

Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private Limited

Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited

K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited (Formerly known as
"Feat Properties Private Limited") (till 8th August 2023)
Carin Properties Private Limited

Asterope Properties Private Limited

Content Properties Private Limited

Gencoval Strategic Services Private Limited

Stemade Biotech Private Limited

Hariom Infrafacilities Services Private Limited

K. Raheja Corp Advisory Services (Cyprus) Private Limited
Convex Properties Private Limited

M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates

Relative of Board of Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel of the
Manager

20

Meera Rohira (Wife of Mr. Vinod Rohira)

* only when acting collectively

*#* Axis Bank Limited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited (“Trustee™), trustee to Mindspace Business Parks REIT, also a Debenture Trustee regulated by SEBI, is considered

as a related party of Mindspace REIT in line with the SEBI REIT Regulations based on recent directions from SEBI dated 12 June 2023,

***A5 on 30th September 2023, K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (Manager) is converted into a private company as per Rule 5 of Companies (Authorised to Register) Rules 2014,
Since the Manager has received approval for the conversion effective July 07, 2023, The Manager, therefore, stands converted into a private company 1.e., K Raheja Corp Investment Managers

Private Limited effective July 07, 2023,




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

48 Related party disclosures

B. Related parties with whom the transactions have taken place during the peviod / year

Particulars

For the quarter ended  For the quarter ended

30 Sept 2023
(Unaudited)*

30 June 2023
{Unaudited

For the quarter ended
30 September 2022

{Unaudited)*

For the half year ended
30 September 2023

For the half year
ended 31 March 2023

(Unaudited

(Unaudited)*

For the half vear ended
30 September 2022
(Unaudited)

For year ended
31 March 2023
{Audited)

Property Management Fee and Support Services Fee

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

{formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers

LLP)

Investment Management Fees
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Linuted

(formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers

LLP)

Trustee fee expenses
Axis Trustee Services Limited

Legal & professional fees
M/s Bobby Panikh and Associates

Leasing Income/related recoveries

Axis Bank Linuted***

Sitting Fees

Neel C Rahgja

Ravi C Raheja

Vinod N. Rohira

Preeti Chheda

Reimbursement of Expenses

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

(formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers

LLP)*

Maintenance Services
Meera Rohira

Repayment of Security Deposits
K. Raheja Corp Pyt Lid

Sale of Asset

K. Raheja Corp Pyt Lid
Overdraft Drawn**
Axis Bank Limited
Overdralt Repaid**
Axis Bank Limnted

Fixed Deposit Placed
Acas Bank Limited

Fixed Deposit Redeemed
Axis Bank Limned

Interest Income on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited

Term Loan Repaid

Axis Bank Limited

Intervest Expense (Including capitalised)
Axis Bank Limited

Bank Charges and Commission
Axis Bank Limited

RN

4

92

135

53

cooo

14,352

12,988

391

pal]

2481

87

1

e

cooo

6,006

6,444

853

848

107

133

2

273

3

oo oo

25,685

24,502

398

578

261

33

108

c o oo

13,477

14,353

237

34

101

[-R-N-N-]

15,193

14612

909

036

209

186

4

498

67

209

—oc oo

28,669

28,966

1,686

1,677

*Includes fees paid to M/s Bobby Pankh & Associates amounting to Rs. 0 mullion for the quarter ended 30 September 2023, Nil for the quarter ended 30 June 2023, Rs. 0 mullion for the quarter ended 30 September 2022, Rs. 0 million
for the half year ended 30 September 2023, Rs. 0 million for the half year ended 31 March 2023, Rs. 0 million for the half year ended 30 Sep 2022 and Rs. 0 million for the year ended 31 March 2023

tor ¢ liance under SEBI REIT Regul

**Considenng constant movements in the overdraft balances during the penod, o ascertain the e

bers of

wccordingly, gross

*** Includes ind as adjustments

draft facility availed and repaid are presented.

the draft balance dunng the penod reduced by
balance of overdraft at the beginning of the relevant period is being considered. However, for disclosure in the financial statements, the disclosure is done based on the cumulative transactions during the reporting peniods and
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

48
C.

Related party disclosures

Balances as at the period end

Particulars

As on
30 September 2023

Ason
31 March 2023

Other Receivable
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Trade Payables

Meera Rohira

M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates
Axis Bank Limited

Sitting Fees Payable
Neel C.Raheja

Ravi C.Raheja

Preeti Chheda

Vinod N Rohira

Other Financial Liabilities
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Security Deposit
Axis Bank Limited

Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP

Bank Balance (Including Escrow and Dividend Account)
Axis Bank Limited

Overdraft Balance
Axis Bank Limited

Fixed Deposit Balance
Axis Bank Limited

Interest Receivable on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited

Term Loan
Axis Bank Limited*®

Trade Receivable
Axis Bank Limited

Non-Fund Based Facilities
Axis Bank Limited

* Includes ind as adjustments

52

]

—

[ B — N — I —]

74

3,287

1,598

38

3,730

353

0

o O O O

74

0

3.276

464

218

53

392
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
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a) The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2023 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the half year
ended 30 September 2023 and the figures for the quarter ended 30 June 2023, which are subjected to limited review.

b) The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2022 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the half year
ended 30 September 2022 and the figures for the quarter ended 30 June 2022, which were subjected to limited review.

c¢) The figures for the half year ended 31 March 2023 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2023 and the published year-to-date figures upto period ended 30 September 2022, which were subjected to
limited review.

During the previous year, KRIT had proposed to redeveiop Buildings 7 and 8 at Mindspace, Madhapur, Hyderabad (forming part

-of Group’s “Real estate” segment) as these were expected to be vacated by the tenant by March 2023. Vacation of these buildings

provides the Company an opportunity to evaluate the possibility of redevelopment which would potentially increase the area of the
building, help incorporating new upgraded facilities, enhance the marketability of the buildings and also offer future consolidation
opportunities to existing tenants in the Park with continuity and growth. Basis the assessment by the SPV of the opportunity and
concurrence from the Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd. (TSIIC) vide its letter dated March 13, 2023, the
SPV proposed to redevelop the said buildings subject to the receipt of statutory approvals & clearances as may be required for the
proposed redevelopment. Accordingly, the Group has charged the written down value of the said buildings, infrastructure plant
and machinery as at March 31, 2023 amounting to Rs. 1,297 million to the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the year ended March 31 , 2023.

During the previous year, An impairment loss of Rs. 72 million related to GIS substation asset at Gigaplex Airoli forming part of
Group’s “Real estate” segment. The impairment charge arose due to technological obsolescence of asset and therefore,
impairment loss has been considered for the carrying value of the asset and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the
year ended March 31 , 2023.

Intime has received show cause notice during the previous year from the Jurisdictional GST Authority for the periods beginning
July 2017 to March 2020 for not considering charging of GST, on the recovery of utilities being electricity, water and DG back-up
power provided to tenants, amounting to Rs. 100 million. The Management, after due consultation with the Consultant, is of the
view that the charges towards electricity and DG back-up power are incurred in the capacity of a ‘pure agent’ as covered under
Rule 33 of CGST Rules, 2017 and also such supplies are exempt as per the Exemption Notification and hence to be excluded from
the value of taxable supply. The Management had filed its detailed response to the show cause notice. Based on the facts of the
case and the provisions of the GST law, no provision has been made w.r.t. recovery of electricity and DG back-up power.

"0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million.
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